
 

 

Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting 
 

 

 

Workshop: Thursday, January 14, 2016 – 2:00 p.m. 

Meeting: Thursday, January 14, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 



 

 

 

Workshop 
 







Roll Call & Establishment of a 
Quorum 



Adoption of Agenda 



 
 

Agenda 
Assembly Meeting 

(packet available on website www.aleutianseast.org ) 

 
Date:   Thursday, January 14, 2016 
 
Time Workshop:  2:00 p.m.  Meeting: 3:00 p.m. 
 
Location: By teleconference in each community location below: 

King Cove AEB office 
Sand Point – AEB office 
Nelson Lagoon Corp. office 

False Pass-city office 
Akutan -city office  
Cold Bay -city office - library 

     AEB Anchorage office (3380 C St) 
 
All communities will be provided with conference calling information for the designated location in your 
community.  Public comments on agenda items will take place immediately after the adoption of the 
agenda.  Additional public comments can be made at the end of the meeting. 
 
WORKSHOP 

1. Discussion: City of False Pass funding request for a hydro assessment of Unga Man and Waterfall 
Creek not to exceed $10,000. 

2. Assembly Meeting Agenda Items. 
 
ASSEMBLY MEETING AGENDA 
 
1. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum. 
 
2. Adoption of the Agenda. 
 
3. Community Roll Call and Public Comment on Agenda Items. 
 
4. Minutes  

 December 10, 2015 Minutes. 
 

5. Financial Reports 
 Financial Reports, December, 2015. 
 Investment Report, December, 2015. 

 
6. Consent Agenda 

 Resolution 16-12, amending the Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Employee 
Handbook. 

 Resolution 16-13, FMA2, adopting an alternative allocation method for the FY16 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program for FMA 2. 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/


 Resolution 16-14, FMA3, adopting an alternative allocation method for the FY16 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program for FMA 3. 

 
7. Old Business 

 
8. New Business  

 Aleutians East Borough School District funding rollover request of $353,700. 
 

9 Reports and Updates. 
 
10. Assembly Comments. 
 
11. Public Comments. 
 
12. Next Meeting Date. 
 
13. Adjournment. 
 



 

 

Community Roll Call & Public 
Comment on Agenda Items 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text



Minutes 



 

 

Aleutians East Borough Assembly Minutes 
December 10, 2015 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Mack called the Regular Assembly meeting to order by teleconference in each 
community on December 10, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
Mayor Stanley Mack  Present 
Chris Babcock  Present 
Carol Foster  Present 
Warren Wilson  Present 
Alvin D. Osterback   Present 
Ken McHugh  Present 
Joe Bereskin, Sr.  Absent-Excused 
Brenda Wilson  Present  
   

 Advisory Members: 
 
 Nikki Hoblet, False Pass  Resigned   
 Paul Schaack, Cold Bay  Absent 

Justine Gundersen, Nelson Lagoon  Present 
 

A quorum was present. 
 
Staff Present: 

Rick Gifford, Administrator 
Roxann Newman, Finance Director 
Tina Anderson, Clerk 
Anne Bailey, Administrator Assistant 
Laura Tanis, Communications Director 
 

Adoption of the Agenda: 
Addition: November Investment Report 
MOTION 
Chris moved to adopt the agenda with the addition and second by Ken.  Hearing no 
objections MOTION PASSED. 

 
Community Roll Call and Public Comments on Agenda Items: 

The communities of King Cove, False Pass, Sand Point, and the Anchorage office were 
participating. 
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Minutes 
December 10, 2015 

2 
 

Paul Gronholdt, from the public, noted the Executive Session regarding the appeal of King 
Cove Access Road.  He voiced his concern with the King Cove Work Group making 
decisions outside of the public process and feels the Assembly should discuss how the 
group is making decisions.   
 
Gronholdt added that he feels it is important that the AEB consider a feasibility study on a 
King Cove/Cold Bay road route through state and private lands as discussed in previous 
meetings instead of spending funds on appealing the latest King Cove road denial decision.  
He also suggested having Dan Rowley address the Assembly on his opinion on the route.   
 

Minutes, November 12, 2015 Minutes: 
MOTION 
Alvin moved to approve the November 12, 2015 Assembly Meeting Minutes and second by 
Carol.  Hearing no more, the minutes are approved as presented. 
 

Financial Report, November, 2015: 
MOTION 
Warren moved to approve the November Financial Report and second by Ken. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Finance Director said the budget is tracking along as it should be.  The Administrator 
added the budget is at 41% through the year, all tracking normal. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Carol-yes, Ken-yes, Chris-yes, Alvin-yes, Warren-yes.  Advisory: Justine-yes.  MOTION 
PASSED. 

  
Investment Reports, October, November: 

Alaska Permanent Capital Management (APCM) provided a presentation at the workshop 
on AEB investments.   

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 Resolution 16-10, a resolution authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute a contract 
with Unit Company for the King Cove School Repairs Project in an amount not to exceed 
$2,679,655.00.  
 

 Resolution 16-11, a resolution of the Aleutians East Borough authorizing the Mayor to 
negotiate and enter into a long-term lease with APICDA Joint Venture.  

 
MOTION 
Alvin moved to approve the Consent Agenda and second Ken. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Alvin-yes, Chris-yes, Ken-yes, Warren-yes, Carol-yes.  Advisory: Justine-yes.  MOTION 
PASSED. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Minutes 
December 10, 2015 

3 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Public Hearing Ordinance 16-03, amending Title 6, Chapter 6.04, Section 6.04.041, 
Subsection (F) of the Aleutians East Borough Code of Ordinance: 
 
MOTION 
Chris moved to approve Ordinance 16-03 and second by Ken. 
 
Mayor Mack opened for Public Hearing.  Hearing none, Public Hearing closed. 
 
DISCUSSION  
The Administrator said Jason Roth from APCM is here to answer any questions regarding 
recommended changes in the ordinance.  There were no further questions. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Ken-yes, Alvin-yes, Warren, Chris-yes, Carol-yes.  Advisory:  Justine-yes.  MOTION 
PASSED. 

 
OLD BUSINESS None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
2016 Advisory Appointments: 

Communities without a voting Assembly seat will have an appointed Advisory Member 
annually.   
 
The communities of False Pass, Cold Bay, and Nelson Lagoon submitted recommendations 
for Advisory Members to be considered by the Assembly.  The names recommended are 
below: 
 

Nelson Lagoon – Justine Gundersen 
False Pass-Chris Emrich 
Cold Bay – Angela Simpson 
 

MOTION 
Alvin moved to accept the recommendations for 2016 Advisory appointments  from the 
communities of Nelson Lagoon, False Pass, and Cold Bay.  Second by Ken. 
Hearing no objection MOTION PASSED.  

 
(Brenda arrived.) 
 
False Pass Capital Project Funding Request-Hydro Assessment of Unga Man and Waterfall 
Creek: 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Minutes 
December 10, 2015 

4 
 

Mayor Mack said amount requested from the City of False Pass is between $5-10,000 for a 
hydro project.  He recommended a resolution be placed before the Assembly 
recommending funding the project with guidelines.  
 
MOTION 
Alvin moved to fund the False Pass request up to $10,000 upon receipt of the invoice.  
Second by Chris.   

 
ROLL CALL 
Ken-yes, Alvin-yes, Warren-yes, Carol-yes Chris-yes, Brenda-yes. Advisory: Justine-yes.  
MOTION PASSED. 

 
REPORTS AND UPDATES In packet. 
 
ASSEMBLY COMMENTS None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS None 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

MOTION 
Alvin moved to go into Executive Session to discuss litigation tactics and strategies with our 
attorneys regarding the following cases: 

(1) Aleutians East Borough v. ASRC SKW Eskimos, Inc., Safeco Insurance Co. and Kumin 
Associates, Inc., Case No. 3AN-13-06305CI re:  King Cove High School Construction 
Litigation. 

(2) Appeal of Kelly-Ryan, Inc., ASBCA No. 57168 re:  False Pass Navigational 
Improvements claim for equitable adjustment. 

(3) Appeal of Decision in AGDASAGUX Tribe of King Cove and State of Alaska v. Sally 
Jewell and Friends of Alaska National Wildlife Refuges, No. 3:14-cv-0110-HRH re:  King 
Cove Access Road denial; and 

 
Allow Administrator Assistant, Anne Bailey, and Advisory Member, Justine Gundersen, to 
remain in Executive Session; and 
 
Allow City of King Cove Administrator, Gary Hennigh, to participate during the King Cove 
Access Road portion of Executive Session.  
 
Second by Brenda.  The Assembly went into Executive Session at 2:30 p.m. 
 
Chris moved to come out of Executive Session at 4:26 p.m. and second by Brenda.   
 
Mayor Mack said during the Executive Session, the Borough Assembly received and 
accepted updates on litigation tactics and strategies provided by the Borough’s attorneys on 
the cases above. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Minutes 
December 10, 2015 

5 
 

 
NEXT MEETING 
Thursday, January 14, 2015 by teleconference. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Brenda moved to adjourn and second by Chris.  The meeting adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
             
Mayor    Date   Clerk    Date 
 
 



Financial Report 



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 06/ 16 1: 40 PM

Revenue Guideline©      
Page 1

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud• et

Fund 01 GENERAL FUND

Active R 01- 201 INTEREST REVENUE 35, 000.00      -$ 1, 339.48 0. 00       $ 36, 339.48     - 3. 83%

Active R 01- 203 OTHER REVENUE 35, 000. 00    $ 143, 191. 44   $ 112,226.81     -$ 108, 191. 44 409. 12%

Active R 01- 206 AEBSD Fund Balance Refun 0. 00    $ 353,722. 57   $ 353,722. 57     -$ 353, 722. 57 0.00%

Active R 01- 218 AEB RAW FISH TAX 3,200, 779. 00  $ 2,089,906.59   $ 155,607.96    $ 1, 110,872.41 65. 29%

Active R 01- 229 Southwest Cities LLC 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 01- 233 STATE PERS ON- BEHALF 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 01- 265 STATE RAW FISH TAX 1, 769, 277. 75  $ 2, 067, 181. 55 $ 2, 067, 181. 55     -$ 297, 903. 80 116. 84%

Active R 01- 266 STATE EXTRATERRITORIA     $ 101, 298. 80 0. 00 0. 00      $ 101, 298. 80 0. 00%

Active R 01- 267 STATE FISH LANDING TAX       $ 35, 217. 22      $ 20, 922. 03    $ 20, 922. 03       $ 14, 295. 19 59.41%

Active R 01- 268 State" Loss" Of Raw Fish Tax 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 01- 270 STATE REVENUE OTHER       $ 396, 981. 95    $ 389,288. 00 0. 00 7,693. 95 98. 06%

Active R 01- 276 AEB SCHOOL 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 01- 277 STATE BOND REBATE 1, 045,464.00    $ 603, 897. 00   $ 167, 742. 00      $ 441, 567. 00 57. 76%

Active R 01- 291 PLO-95 PAYMNT IN LIEU 0      $ 559,000.00      $ 41, 718. 00 0. 00      $ 517, 282. 00 7.46%

Active R 01- 292 USFWS LANDS 36,256. 00 0. 00 0. 00       $ 36,256.00 0. 00%

Total Fund 01 GENERAL FUND 7,214,274.72   $ 5, 708,487. 70  $ 2, 877,402. 92   $ 1, 505, 787. 02 79. 13%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
1



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 06/ 16 1: 40 PM

Revenue Guideline©      
Page 2

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15-16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD
YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud. et

Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS

Active R 20-201 INTEREST REVENUE 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active R 20-203 OTHER REVENUE 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20-207 AEB Grant Revenue 726,000.00 0.00 0.00      $ 726,000. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20-209 AEB Grants 2, 015,000.00    $ 808, 000. 00 0. 00    $ 1, 207,000.00 40. 10%

Active R 20-287 KCAP/09- DC- 359 1, 745, 156.39    $ 214, 903. 11 0.00    $ 1, 530,253.28 12. 31%

Active R 20-424 EDA/Akutan Harbor Floats 997,427. 68 0. 00 0. 00      $ 997, 427. 68 0. 00%

Active R 20- 426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Float      $ 271, 592. 37 0. 00 0. 00      $ 271, 592. 37 0. 00%

Active R 20- 427 Akutan Harbor Contribution       $ 350, 000. 00    $ 350, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00 100. 00%

Active R 20- 499 Cold Bay Airport-Apron& Taxi    $ 2,000,000.00 0. 00 0. 00    $ 2, 000, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 503 CDBG- Nelson Lagoon Erosi      $ 532,000.00 0. 00 0. 00      $ 532, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 504 Nelson Lagoon ErosionlOCl 33, 174.27       $ 6, 321. 66      $ 6, 321. 66       $ 26, 852. 61 19. 06%
Active R 20- 518 CTAP- Create A Resource La 28,874.78 0. 00 0. 00       $ 28, 874. 78 0. 00%

Active R 20- 521 Nelson Lagoon Contribution 50,000.00      $ 50, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 100. 00%

Active R 20- 813 Akutan Airport/CIP Trident 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 876 National Fish& Wildlife Gran       $ 95,000.00 0.00 0. 00       $ 95, 000. 00 0. 00%

Total Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS 8, 844, 225.49  $ 1, 429, 224. 77      $ 6,321. 66   $ 7,415, 000. 72 16. 16%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
2



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Page 2

Expenditure Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15-16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15-16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Active E 01- 200-000-525 RENTAL/ LEASE 23,404.00      $ 11, 640. 70      $ 2,339.02       $ 11, 763.30 49.74%

Active E 01- 200-000-530 DUES AND FEES 2, 500. 00 625. 00 0.00 1, 875.00 25.00%

SUBDEPT 000 364,574.72     $ 195,457.43     $ 31, 402. 19     $ 157, 305. 74 53. 61%

Total DEPT 200 ADMINISTRATION       $ 364, 574. 72    $ 195,457.43     $ 31, 402. 19     $ 157,305.74 53. 61%

DEPT 201 Assistant Administrator

Active E 01- 201- 000- 300 SALARIES 92, 700. 00      $ 46,350.00      $ 7,725. 00       $ 46,350. 00 50. 00%

Active E 01- 201- 000- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS       $ 30, 782. 00      $ 19, 642.94      $ 3,284.80       $ 11, 139.06 63. 81%

Active E 01- 201- 000-400 TRAVEL AND PER       $ 10, 000. 00       $ 4,843. 86 739. 86 5, 156. 14 48.44%

Active E 01- 201- 000- 425 TELEPHONE 4, 000. 00 199.32 0. 00 3, 800. 68 4.98%

Active E 01- 201- 000-450 POSTAGE/ SPEED 200. 00 0.00 0. 00 200. 00 0. 00%

Active E 01- 201- 000-475 SUPPLIES 2,500.00       $ 1, 979. 86 88. 37 520. 14 79. 19%

Active E 01- 201- 000-525 RENTAULEASE 8,903.00       $ 3, 880.27 779. 68 5, 022. 73 43. 58%

SUBDEPT 000 149, 085. 00      $ 76, 896. 25     $ 12,617. 71       $ 70, 460. 75 51. 58%

Total DEPT 201 Assistant Administrator       $ 149, 085. 00      $ 76, 896. 25     $ 12, 617. 71       $ 70,460.75 51. 58%

DEPT 250 FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Active E 01- 250-000-300 SALARIES 130,848.09      $ 66, 185. 02    $ 10,406.42       $ 64,663.07 50.58%

Active E 01- 250-000-350 FRINGE BENEFITS       $ 52,725.00      $ 30, 083. 83      $ 4,993.36       $ 22,641. 17 57.06%

Active E 01- 250-000-400 TRAVEL AND PER 7,000. 00       $ 2, 561. 74 945.24 4,438.26 36.60%

Active E 01- 250-000-425 TELEPHONE 5, 000. 00       $ 3, 774.40 779.70 1, 225.60 75.49%

Active E 01- 250-000-450 POSTAGE/SPEED 2, 500. 00 515.00 15.00 1, 985.00 20.60%

Active E 01- 250-000-475 SUPPLIES 7, 500.00       $ 7,809.44 773.47 309.44 104. 13%

Active E 01- 250-000-526 UTILITIES 5, 000. 00       $ 1, 298. 13 166.20 3, 701. 87 25.96%

Active E 01- 250-000- 550 AUDIT 45, 000. 00      $ 43,723. 12 0. 00 1, 276.88 97. 16%

SUBDEPT 000 255,573. 09     $ 155,950.68     $ 18, 079.39       $ 98, 304. 61 61. 02%

Total DEPT 250 FINANCE DEPARTMENT       $ 255, 573. 09    $ 155,950.68     $ 18, 079.39       $ 98, 304. 61 61. 02%

DEPT 650 RESOURCE DEPARTMENT

Active E 01- 650-000- 300 SALARIES 89, 516. 28      $ 44,758. 32      $ 7,459.72       $ 44,757. 96 50. 00%

Active E 01- 650- 000- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS       $ 30,822. 00      $ 19, 251. 50      $ 3,219. 56       $ 11, 570. 50 62.46%

Active E 01- 650- 000-380 CONTRACT LABO 31, 250.00      $ 23,400.00      $ 9, 200.00 7, 850. 00 74. 88%

Active E 01- 650- 000-400 TRAVEL AND PER       $ 35,000.00       $ 3, 885.63 3. 00       $ 31, 114. 37 11. 10%

Active E 01- 650- 000-402 NPFMC Meetings 15, 000.00       $ 3, 104. 00 0. 00       $ 11, 896. 00 20.69%

Active E 01- 650-000-403 BOF Meetings 30,000.00       $ 3, 141. 17      $ 3, 141. 17       $ 26,858.83 10.47%

Active E 01- 650-000-425 TELEPHONE 3, 000.00 154. 54 0. 00 2,845.46 5. 15%

Active E 01- 650-000-475 SUPPLIES 7,000. 00 627. 96 413. 13 6, 372.04 8.97%

Active E 01- 650-000-525 RENTAL/ LEASE 8, 903. 00       $ 3, 880. 27 779.68 5,022.73 43.58%

SUBDEPT 000 250,491. 28     $ 102,203. 39     $ 24, 216. 26     $ 147, 151. 49 40.80%

Total DEPT 650 RESOURCE DEPARTMENT       $ 250, 491. 28    $ 102,203.39     $ 24, 216. 26     $ 147, 151. 49 40.80%

DEPT 651 COMMUNICATION DIRECTOR

Active E 01- 651- 011- 300 SALARIES 95, 707. 50      $ 51, 841. 53      $ 7,975.62       $ 43,865. 97 54. 17%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS       $ 33, 518. 00      $ 13,787.34      $ 2, 218.40       $ 19,730.66 41. 13%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 400 TRAVEL AND PER       $ 15, 000. 00       $ 5, 057.43 0. 00 9, 942. 57 33. 72%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 425 TELEPHONE 2, 400.00 917. 82 269. 96 1, 482. 18 38.24%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 450 POSTAGE/ SPEED 250.00 0. 00 0. 00 250.00 0. 00%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 475 SUPPLIES 4,500.00 237. 99 110. 64 4, 262. 01 5.29%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 525 RENTAL/ LEASE 10, 016.00       $ 4, 365. 26 877. 13 5,650.74 43.58%

Active E 01- 651- 011- 532 ADVERTISING 15, 000.00      $ 10, 051. 23      $ 3,326.88 4,948.77 67.01%

SUBDEPT 011 PUBLIC INFORMATION 176, 391. 50      $ 86, 258. 60     $ 14, 778. 63      $ 88,656.70 48.90%

Total DEPT 651 COMMUNICATION DIRECTOR       $ 176, 391. 50      $ 86,258.60     $ 14, 778. 63       $ 88,656.70 48.90%

DEPT 700 PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Active E 01- 700-000-300 SALARIES 82, 231. 84      $ 42,743.46      $ 6,852.66       $ 39,488. 38 51. 98%

Active E 01- 700-000- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS       $ 30, 384.00      $ 18, 397.83      $ 3,053.22       $ 11, 986. 17 60.55%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
3



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Page 3

Expenditure Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15-16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Active E 01- 700- 000-400 TRAVEL AND PER       $ 11, 000.00       $ 7, 847.55 0. 00 3, 152. 45 71. 34%

Active E 01- 700- 000-425 TELEPHONE 1, 500.00 551. 98 121. 48 948. 02 36.80%

Active E 01- 700-000-475 SUPPLIES 3,000.00       $ 2, 889. 69 0. 00 110. 31 96.32%

Active E 01- 700-000-500 EQUIPMENT 1, 500.00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 500.00 0.00%

Active E 01- 700-000-526 UTILITIES 2, 000. 00       $ 1, 188. 76 0.00 811. 24 59.44%

SUBDEPT 000 131, 615.84      $ 73,619.27     $ 10, 027.36       $ 57,898.56 55.93%

Total DEPT 700 PUBLIC WORKS       $ 131, 615. 84      $ 73,619.27     $ 10, 027. 36       $ 57, 898. 56 55. 93%

DEPARTMENT

DEPT 844 KCAP

Active E 01- 844- 000-300 SALARIES 2, 500. 00 150.00 0. 00 2, 350. 00 6.00%

Active E 01- 844-000-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 5,000.00       $ 6, 349.79 0. 00 1, 349. 79 127. 00%

Active E 01- 844-000-400 TRAVEL AND PER 4,000.00 0. 00 0. 00 4, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active E 01- 844-000-425 TELEPHONE 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 01- 844-000-475 SUPPLIES 1, 000.00       $ 1, 139. 33 192. 53 139.33 113.93%

Active E 01- 844-000-525 RENTAL/ LEASE 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Active E 01- 844-000-603 MAINTENANCE 100, 000.00 0. 00 0.00      $ 100, 000.00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 112,500.00       $ 7,639. 12 192. 53     $ 104,692.78 6.79%

Total DEPT 844 KCAP       $ 112, 500. 00       $ 7,639. 12 192. 53     $ 104, 692. 78 6.79%

DEPT 850 EDUCATION

Active E 01- 850- 000-700 LOCAL SCHOOL C      $ 800, 000. 00    $ 200, 000. 00 0. 00      $ 600, 000. 00 25. 00%

Active E 01- 850- 000-701 SCHOOL SCHOLA 20,000.00 0.00 0. 00       $ 20, 000. 00 0.00%

Active E 01- 850- 000-756 STUDENT TRAVEL       $ 20,000.00 0. 00 0. 00       $ 20, 000. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 840, 000. 00     $ 200, 000. 00 0. 00     $ 640, 000. 00 23.81%

Total DEPT 850 EDUCATION       $ 840,000. 00    $ 200, 000. 00 0. 00     $ 640, 000. 00 23. 81%

DEPT 900 OTHER

Active E 01- 900-000-500 EQUIPMENT 35, 000. 00       $ 5, 082. 31 0. 00       $ 29,917.69 14.52%

Active E 01- 900-000-515 AEB VEHICLES 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active E 01- 900-000-525 RENTAL/LEASE 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 01- 900-000- 526 UTILITIES 25, 000. 00       $ 7,925.73 752.23       $ 17, 074. 27 31. 70%

Active E 01- 900-000- 527 Aleutia Crab 58, 522. 00 0.00 0. 00       $ 58, 522. 00 0.00%

Active E 01- 900- 000- 551 LEGAL 175, 000. 00      $ 21, 833. 10      $ 4,455. 10      $ 153, 166. 90 12.48%

Active E 01- 900- 000-552 INSURANCE 150, 000. 00    $ 145,724.00 0. 00 4,276. 00 97. 15%

Active E 01- 900- 000-600 REPAIRS 2, 500.00       $ 9, 654. 17 0. 00 7, 154. 17 386.17%

Active E 01- 900-000-727 BANK FEES 2,000.00       $ 5, 552. 96 828.41 3,552.96 277.65%

Active E 01- 900-000-752 CONTRIBUTION T       $ 150,000. 00      $ 37, 500. 00 0. 00      $ 112, 500.00 25.00%

Active E 01- 900-000-753 MISC EXPENSE 96, 000. 00      $ 53,365.30    $ 53,224.46       $ 42,634.70 55.59%

Active E 01- 900-000-757 DONATIONS 23, 500. 00       $ 9,250.00      $ 5,000.00       $ 14,250.00 39. 36%

Active E 01- 900-000-760 REVENUE SHARIN       $ 32, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00       $ 32, 000. 00 0.00%

Active E 01- 900-000- 943 WEB SERVICE 40, 000. 00      $ 14, 399. 00      $ 2,450. 00       $ 25,601. 00 36. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 789, 522. 00     $ 310,286. 57     $ 66,710.20     $ 477, 039. 53 39. 30%

Total DEPT 900 OTHER       $ 789,522. 00    $ 310, 286. 57     $ 66,710.20     $ 477, 039. 53 39.30%

Total Fund 01 GENERAL FUND 3, 741, 422.78  $ 1, 537, 029. 86    $ 234,266. 01    $ 2, 182, 260. 27 41. 08%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
4



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3:03 PM

Page 2

Revenue Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15-16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud. et

Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS

Active R 20- 201 INTEREST REVENUE 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 203 OTHER REVENUE 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 207 AEB Grant Revenue 726,000. 00 0. 00 0. 00      $ 726, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 209 AEB Grants 2,015,000.00    $ 808, 000. 00 0. 00    $ 1, 207,000. 00 40. 10%

Active R 20-287 KCAP/09- DC- 359 1, 745, 156. 39    $ 214, 903. 11 0.00    $ 1, 530, 253. 28 12. 31%

Active R 20-424 EDA/Akutan Harbor Floats 997,427.68 0. 00 0. 00      $ 997,427.68 0. 00%

Active R 20-426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Float      $ 271, 592. 37 0. 00 0.00      $ 271, 592. 37 0. 00%

Active R 20-427 Akutan Harbor Contribution       $ 350, 000. 00    $ 350,000.00 0. 00 0.00 100.00%

Active R 20-499 Cold Bay Airport-Apron&Taxi    $ 2, 000, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00    $ 2,000,000.00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 503 CDBG- Nelson Lagoon Erosi      $ 532, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00      $ 532, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 504 Nelson Lagoon ErosionlOCl 33, 174. 27 0. 00 0. 00       $ 33, 174. 27 0. 00%

Active R 20- 518 CTAP-Create A Resource La 28,874.78 0.00 0. 00       $ 28, 874.78 0. 00%

Active R 20- 521 Nelson Lagoon Contribution 50,000.00      $ 50, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 100. 00%

Active R 20- 813 Akutan Airport/CIP Trident 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 20- 876 National Fish& Wildlife Gran       $ 95,000.00 0. 00 0. 00       $ 95,000.00 0. 00%

Total Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS 8,844,225.49  $ 1, 422, 903. 11 0. 00   $ 7, 421, 322.38 16. 09%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
5



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3:03 PM

Page 4

Expenditure Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS

DEPT 424 EDA/Akutan Harbor Floats

Active E 20-424- 000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 997, 761. 95 0. 00 0. 00      $ 997, 761. 95 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 997, 761. 95 0. 00 0. 00     $ 997, 761. 95 0. 00%

Total DEPT 424 EDA/Akutan Harbor Floats       $ 997,761. 95 0. 00 0. 00     $ 997, 761. 95 0. 00%

DEPT 426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Floats

Active E 20-426-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 271, 592.37 423. 32 0. 00      $ 271, 169.05 0. 16%

SUBDEPT 000 271, 592.37 423.32 0. 00     $ 271, 169. 05 0. 16%

Total DEPT 426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Floats       $ 271, 592. 37 423.32 0. 00     $ 271, 169. 05 0. 16%

DEPT 427 Akutan Harbor Contribution

Active E 20-427-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 350, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00      $ 350, 000. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 NO DESCR 350, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00     $ 350, 000. 00 0. 00%

Total DEPT 427 Akutan Harbor Contribution       $ 350, 000. 00 0.00 0.00     $ 350, 000. 00 0.00%

DEPT 499 Cold Bay Airport-Apron&Taxiway
Active E 20-499- 049- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR    $ 2, 000, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00    $ 2, 000, 000. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 049 DCCED- 13- DC- 501 2, 000, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00   $ 2, 000, 000. 00 0. 00%

Total DEPT 499 Cold Bay Airport-     $ 2, 000,000. 00 0. 00 0. 00   $ 2, 000, 000. 00 0. 00%

Apron&Taxiway

DEPT 504 Nelson Lagoon Erosion

Active E 20- 504-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR       $ 33, 174.27       $ 8, 036. 82      $ 1, 715. 16       $ 25, 137.45 24.23%

SUBDEPT 000 33, 174.27       $ 8, 036. 82      $ 1, 715. 16       $ 25, 137.45 24.23%

Active E 20- 504-208-380 CONTRACT LABO       $ 436,000. 00 0.00 0. 00      $ 436,000.00 0.00%

Active E 20- 504-208-500 EQUIPMENT 96, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00       $ 96,000. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 208 CDBG/ Nelson Lagoon 532, 000.00 0. 00 0. 00     $ 532, 000. 00 0. 00%

Erosion

Active E 20-504-209-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 108, 000. 00      $ 68,970.01      $ 8,774.55       $ 39,029. 99 63.86%

SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant 108,000. 00      $ 68,970.01       $ 8, 774.55       $ 39, 029. 99 63. 86%

Total DEPT 504 Nelson Lagoon Erosion       $ 673, 174. 27      $ 77,006.83     $ 10, 489.71      $ 596, 167.44 11. 44%

DEPT 513 COLD BAY APRON PROJECT

Active E 20-513- 000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 225, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00      $ 225, 000. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 225, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00     $ 225, 000. 00 0. 00%

Total DEPT 513 COLD BAY APRON PROJECT       $ 225,000.00 0. 00 0. 00     $ 225, 000. 00 0. 00%

DEPT 518 CTAP- Create A Resource LandUse

Active E 20- 518-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR       $ 28,874.78 0. 00 0. 00       $ 28,874.78 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 28,874.78 0.00 0. 00       $ 28,874.78 0.00%

Total DEPT 518 CTAP- Create A Resource 28, 874. 78 0.00 0. 00      $ 28,874.78 0. 00%

LandUse

DEPT 520 Cold Bay Clinic
Active E 20-520-000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 494, 973. 00       $ 4,032.00 0. 00      $ 490, 941. 00 0.81%

SUBDEPT 000 494,973. 00       $ 4, 032.00 0.00     $ 490, 941. 00 0. 81%

Active E 20- 520-209- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR    $ 1, 137, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00    $ 1, 137, 000. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant 1, 137, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00   $ 1, 137, 000. 00 0. 00%

Total DEPT 520 Cold Bay Clinic     $ 1, 631, 973.00       $ 4, 032. 00 0. 00   $ 1, 627, 941. 00 0.25%

DEPT 521 Nelson Lagoon Contribution

Active E 20- 521- 000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR       $ 50,000.00      $ 50, 000. 00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

SUBDEPT 000 NO DESCR 50, 000.00      $ 50,000. 00 0. 00 0.00 100.00%

Total DEPT 521 Nelson Lagoon Contribution 50, 000.00      $ 50,000.00 0. 00 0.00 100.00%

DEPT 802 CAPITAL- COLD BAY

Active E 20- 802-000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR       $ 60, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00       $ 60, 000. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 60, 000. 00 0.00 0.00       $ 60, 000. 00 0.00%

Total DEPT 802 CAPITAL- COLD BAY 60, 000. 00 0. 00 0.00       $ 60, 000. 00 0. 00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
6



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Page 5

Expenditure Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

DEPT 803 CAPITAL- FALSE PASS

Active E 20-803-000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR       $ 11, 460. 13 0.00 0. 00       $ 11, 460. 13 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 11, 460. 13 0. 00 0.00       $ 11, 460. 13 0. 00%

Total DEPT 803 CAPITAL- FALSE PASS 11, 460. 13 0.00 0. 00       $ 11, 460. 13 0. 00%

DEPT 813 Akutan Airport/CIP Trident

Active E 20- 813-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 339,884.36      $ 13, 740.00    $ 13, 740.00      $ 326, 144. 36 4.04%

SUBDEPT 000 339,884.36      $ 13, 740. 00     $ 13, 740. 00     $ 326, 144.36 4.04%

Total DEPT 813 Akutan Airport/CIP Trident       $ 339, 884. 36      $ 13,740.00     $ 13, 740. 00     $ 326, 144. 36 4.04%

DEPT 867 KCC Alternative Road

Active E 20-867-000- 300 SALARIES 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 20-867-000- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 20- 867- 000- 380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 20-867- 000-381 ENGINEERING 0.00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 20- 867- 000-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 20- 867- 000-475 SUPPLIES 0.00       $ 2,400. 00      $ 2,400.00 2,400. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 0. 00       $ 2, 400. 00      $ 2,400.00       -$ 2, 400.00 0. 00%

Active E 20- 867- 168- 300 SALARIES 13, 600.00       $ 1, 125. 00 75.00       $ 12,475.00 8.27%

Active E 20- 867- 168-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 332. 06       $ 1, 608. 25      $ 1, 590.78 1, 276. 19 484.33%

Active E 20-867- 168- 381 ENGINEERING 879, 500.00       $ 8,987.51 0.00      $ 870, 512.49 1. 02%

Active E 20- 867- 168-400 TRAVEL AND PER 5, 926.49 0.00 0. 00 5,926.49 0.00%

Active E 20-867- 168- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 845, 797. 84       $ 5,431. 25      $ 5,431. 25      $ 840,366. 59 0.64%

SUBDEPT 168 KCAP/ 09- DC- 359 1, 745, 156.39      $ 17, 152.01       $ 7,097.03   $ 1, 728,004.38 0.98%

Active E 20-867-209- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 725, 000. 00    $ 159,496.94   $ 156,250. 00      $ 565, 503. 06 22. 00%

SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant 725, 000. 00     $ 159,496.94    $ 156,250.00     $ 565, 503. 06 22.00%

Total DEPT 867 KCC Alternative Road     $ 2,470, 156.39    $ 179, 048. 95    $ 165,747.03   $ 2, 291, 107.44 7. 25%

DEPT 875 King Cove WaterfallCreek Power
Active E 20- 875-209-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 500, 000.00    $ 100, 000. 00 0.00      $ 400,000.00 20.00%

SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant 500,000.00     $ 100,000. 00 0. 00     $ 400,000. 00 20.00%

Total DEPT 875 King Cove WaterfallCreek       $ 500, 000.00    $ 100,000.00 0. 00     $ 400,000.00 20.00%

Power

DEPT 876 National Fish& Wildlife Grant

Active E 20- 876-000- 300 SALARIES 3, 990. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 990. 00 0. 00%

Active E 20-876- 000- 380 CONTRACT LABO 82, 425.00       $ 5, 232. 67      $ 3, 010.00       $ 77, 192. 33 6. 35%

Active E 20- 876-000-400 TRAVEL AND PER 8,585.00 0. 00 0. 00 8, 585. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 NO DESCR 95, 000. 00       $ 5, 232. 67      $ 3, 010. 00       $ 89, 767. 33 5. 51%

Total DEPT 876 National Fish& Wildlife Grant 95,000.00       $ 5, 232. 67      $ 3, 010. 00       $ 89,767.33 5. 51%

DEPT 900 OTHER

Active E 20-900-000-753 MISC EXPENSE 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Active E 20-900-000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00%

Total DEPT 900 OTHER 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00%

Total Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS 9,704,877.25    $ 429,483.77    $ 192,986.74   $ 9, 275,393.48 4.43%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
7



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Revenue Guideline©      
Page 3

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15-16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud• et

Fund 22 OPERATIONS

Active R 22- 203 OTHER REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 22-221 COLD BAY TERMINAL LEA      $ 139,620.00      $ 70, 753. 32    $ 21, 792. 22       $ 68,866.68 50.68%

Active R 22-222 COLD BAY TERMINAL OTH 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00%

Active R 22-301 HELICOPTER/TICKETS 500, 000. 00    $ 161, 584. 05    $ 61, 153.35      $ 338,415.95 32.32%

Active R 22- 302 HELICOPTER/FREIGHT 85, 000. 00      $ 40,276.60      $ 7,000.00       $ 44,723.40 47. 38%

Total Fund 22 OPERATIONS 724,620. 00    $ 272,613.97     $ 89, 945. 57     $ 452,006.03 37.62%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
8



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Expenditure Guideline©  
Page 6

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15-16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Fund 22 OPERATIONS

DEPT 802 CAPITAL- COLD BAY

Active E 22- 802- 200-300 SALARIES 26, 300.00      $ 13, 518. 24      $ 2, 253.04       $ 12, 781. 76 51. 40%

Active E 22- 802- 200-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 3,617.00       $ 1, 198. 92 199. 82 2,418. 08 33. 15%

Active E 22- 802-200-380 CONTRACT LABO 10,000.00 0.00 0. 00       $ 10, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active E 22- 802-200-400 TRAVEL AND PER 3,000.00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 000.00 0. 00%

Active E 22- 802-200-425 TELEPHONE 4,500.00       $ 1, 669. 84 277.58 2,830. 16 37. 11%

Active E 22- 802-200-475 SUPPLIES 7, 500. 00       $ 1, 126. 95 35.00 6,373.05 15.03%

Active E 22- 802-200-525 RENTAL/ LEASE 5, 335. 00 0.00 0.00 5, 335.00 0.00%

Active E 22- 802-200-526 UTILITIES 24, 000. 00       $ 6,613. 83      $ 1, 838.61       $ 17, 386. 17 27.56%

Active E 22- 802-200-576 GAS 1, 500. 00 0. 00 0.00 1, 500.00 0.00%

Active E 22-802-200-577 FUEL 15, 000. 00       $ 8,222. 18      $ 4, 156.08 6,777.82 54. 81%

SUBDEPT 200 COLD BAY TERMINAL 100,752.00      $ 32, 349.96      $ 8,760. 13      $ 62, 185. 14 32. 11%

Total DEPT 802 CAPITAL- COLD BAY       $ 100, 752. 00      $ 32,349.96      $ 8, 760. 13       $ 62, 185. 14 32. 11%

DEPT 845 HELICOPTER OPERATIONS

Active E 22-845-300- 300 SALARIES 100, 000. 00      $ 47,689.33      $ 7,772.33       $ 52, 310. 67 47.69%

Active E 22-845-300- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS       $ 23, 000. 00      $ 13, 649.24      $ 2,283.31 9, 350.76 59. 34%

Active E 22-845- 300- 380 CONTRACT LABO     $ 1, 350, 000. 00    $ 584, 173.70   $ 139,013. 20      $ 765, 826. 30 43.27%

Active E 22-845- 300-400 TRAVEL AND PER 5, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 000. 00 0.00%

Active E 22-845- 300-425 TELEPHONE 2, 000.00 672. 84 112. 15 1, 327. 16 33.64%

Active E 22- 845-300-475 SUPPLIES 40,000.00       $ 7, 009.37      $ 3, 317.36       $ 32, 990. 63 17. 52%

Active E 22- 845- 300-500 EQUIPMENT 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 22- 845- 300-525 RENTAL/ LEASE 18,000.00       $ 4, 500. 00      $ 1, 500.00       $ 13, 500. 00 25. 00%

Active E 22- 845- 300-526 UTILITIES 5, 000.00       $ 5, 085. 00 0. 00 85. 00 101. 70%

Active E 22- 845- 300-552 INSURANCE 18, 200.00      -$ 1, 000. 00     ($ 1, 000.00)      $ 19, 200. 00     - 5. 49%

Active E 22- 845-300-576 GAS 7,500.00       $ 4, 667. 88      $ 1, 117.44 2, 832. 12 62. 24%

Active E 22- 845-300-577 FUEL 200,000. 00      $ 70, 320.40    $ 25, 645.85      $ 129, 679. 60 35. 16%

SUBDEPT 300 HELICOPTER OPERATIONS      $ 1, 768,700.00     $ 736, 767. 76    $ 179, 761. 64     $ 824,477. 78 41. 66%

Total DEPT 845 HELICOPTER OPERATIONS     $ 1, 768,700.00    $ 736, 767. 76    $ 179,761. 64     $ 824,477.78 41. 66%

Total Fund 22 OPERATIONS 1, 869,452.00    $ 769, 117. 72    $ 188, 521. 77     $ 886,662. 92 41. 14%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
9



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Page 4

Revenue Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15-16 15-16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud. et

Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTION

Active R 24-201 INTEREST REVENUE 0. 00      -$ 1, 273.25 0.00 1, 273.25 0. 00%

Active R 24-203 OTHER REVENUE 5, 000, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00    $ 5, 000,000.00 0.00%

Active R 24-227 COE- HARBOR PROJECTS 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active R 24-259 BOND PROCEEDS 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 24- 270 STATE REVENUE OTHER 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 24- 277 STATE BOND REBATE 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Total Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTION 5, 000, 000. 00      -$ 1, 273. 25 0.00   $ 5, 001, 273. 25     - 0. 03%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
10



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Page 7

Expenditure Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTION

DEPT 809 Akutan Airport/Grant

Active E 24-809- 000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 525, 177.42 0. 00 0. 00      $ 525, 177.42 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 525, 177.42 0.00 0. 00     $ 525, 177.42 0. 00%

Total DEPT 809 Akutan Airport/Grant       $ 525, 177.42 0. 00 0. 00     $ 525, 177. 42 0. 00%

DEPT 833 FALSE PASS HARBOR

Active E 24- 833-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR      $ 347,796.24       $ 4, 998.65 0. 00      $ 342, 797. 59 1. 44%

SUBDEPT 000 347,796.24       $ 4, 998. 65 0. 00     $ 342, 797.59 1. 44%

Total DEPT 833 FALSE PASS HARBOR       $ 347, 796. 24       $ 4,998. 65 0. 00     $ 342, 797. 59 1. 44%

DEPT 839 AKUTAN HARBOR

Active E 24-839-000- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR    $ 1, 008,775. 22 668. 50 668. 50    $ 1, 008, 106.72 0. 07%

SUBDEPT 000 1, 008, 775. 22 668.50 668. 50   $ 1, 008, 106.72 0. 07%

Total DEPT 839 AKUTAN HARBOR     $ 1, 008, 775. 22 668.50 668.50   $ 1, 008, 106.72 0.07%

DEPT 900 OTHER

Active E 24- 900-000-380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00      $ 17, 245. 51      $ 6, 921. 61      -$ 17, 245. 51 0. 00%

Active E 24- 900-000-725 BOND INTEREST 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 24- 900-000-745 Bond Sale Expense 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 24- 900-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 0.00      $ 17, 245. 51      $ 6, 921. 61      -$ 17, 245. 51 0.00%

Total DEPT 900 OTHER 0. 00      $ 17,245.51       $ 6, 921. 61      -$ 17, 245.51 0.00%

Total Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTION 1, 881, 748. 88      $ 22,912.66      $ 7, 590. 11    $ 1, 858,836.22 1. 22%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
11



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Page 5

Revenue Guideline©

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15-16 DECEMBER 15-16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud• et

Fund 30 BOND FUND

Active R 30-201 INTEREST REVENUE 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active R 30-203 OTHER REVENUE 1, 597,433. 00 0.00 0. 00    $ 1, 597,433. 00 0. 00%

Active R 30- 204 OPERATING TRANSFER F 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 30- 259 BOND PROCEEDS 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Total Fund 30 BOND FUND 1, 597,433.00 0. 00 0.00   $ 1, 597,433. 00 0. 00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
12



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Expenditure Guideline©  
Page 8

Current Period: DECEMBER 15-16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15-16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Fund 30 BOND FUND

DEPT 900 OTHER

Active E 30- 900-000-725 BOND INTEREST       $ 934,433.00    $ 646,255. 63 0.00      $ 288, 177. 37 69. 16%

Active E 30- 900-000-726 BOND PRINCIPAL       $ 663,000.00  $ 1, 335, 000. 00 0.00     -$ 672, 000. 00 201. 36%

Active E 30- 900-000-745 Bond Sale Expense 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 1, 597,433.00   $ 1, 981, 255. 63 0. 00    -$ 383,822.63 124.03%

Total DEPT 900 OTHER     $ 1, 597,433.00  $ 1, 981, 255. 63 0. 00    -$ 383,822.63 124.03%

Total Fund 30 BOND FUND 1, 597,433. 00  $ 1, 981, 255.63 0. 00    -$ 383, 822. 63 124.03%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
13



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Revenue Guideline©      
Page 6

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15-16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud• et

Fund 40 PERMANENT FUND

Active R 40- 201 INTEREST REVENUE 0. 00  -$ 1, 654,668.01 0. 00    $ 1, 654,668. 01 0. 00%

Active R 40- 203 OTHER REVENUE 350, 000. 00 0.00 0. 00      $ 350, 000. 00 0. 00%

Active R 40- 230 LAND SALES 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Total Fund 40 PERMANENT FUND 350, 000. 00  -$ 1, 654, 668. 01 0.00   $ 2, 004,668. 01   - 472. 76%

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
14



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Expenditure Guideline©  
Page 9

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Fund 40 PERMANENT FUND

DEPT 900 OTHER

Active E 40- 900-000- 380 CONTRACT LABO 35, 000. 00      $ 17,245.48      $ 6,921. 60       $ 17, 754. 52 49.27%

Active E 40- 900-000-751 OPERATING TRAN 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 35, 000. 00      $ 17,245.48      $ 6, 921. 60       $ 17, 754. 52 49.27%

Total DEPT 900 OTHER 35, 000. 00      $ 17,245.48      $ 6, 921. 60       $ 17, 754. 52 49. 27%

Total Fund 40 PERMANENT FUND 35, 000. 00      $ 17,245.48      $ 6, 921. 60       $ 17, 754. 52 49. 27%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
15



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Revenue Guideline©      
Page 7

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Bud• et

Fund 41 MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

Active R 41- 201 INTEREST REVENUE 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 41- 203 OTHER REVENUE 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active R 41- 276 AEB SCHOOL 3, 132, 800. 00    $ 320,000. 00 0. 00    $ 2, 812, 800. 00 10.21%

Total Fund 41 MAINTENANCE RESERVE 3, 132,800.00    $ 320, 000. 00 0. 00   $ 2, 812, 800. 00 10. 21%

FUND

tanderson
Typewritten Text
16



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3: 03 PM

Expenditure Guideline©
Page 10

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Fund 41 MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

DEPT 800 CAPITAL- SCHOOL

Active E 41- 800- 000-461 Sand Point Playgro 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 000 NO DESCR 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 857-300 SALARIES 0. 00      $ 15, 265.63 0. 00      -$ 15, 265. 63 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-857-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0. 00       $ 1, 354. 08 0. 00 1, 354. 08 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-857-380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 857-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800- 857-475 SUPPLIES 0. 00       $ 1, 447. 88 0. 00       -$ 1, 447.88 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 857-850 CAPITAL CONSTR 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 857 FALSE PASS SCHOOL 0. 00      $ 18, 067. 59 0. 00      -$ 18, 067. 59 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 865-300 SALARIES 0. 00 500. 00 0. 00 500. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-865-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0. 00 44.35 0. 00 44. 35 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-865-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-865-475 SUPPLIES 0.00       $ 3, 108. 16 0. 00 3, 108. 16 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 865 Akutan School 0. 00       $ 3,652. 51 0. 00       -$ 3, 652. 51 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-866-300 SALARIES 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-866-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0.00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-866-380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00       $ 3, 000. 00 0. 00       -$ 3,000.00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-866-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-866-425 TELEPHONE 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-866-475 SUPPLIES 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-866-850 CAPITAL CONSTR 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 866 NELSON LAGOON SCHOOL 0.00       $ 3,000. 00 0. 00       -$ 3, 000. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-867-300 SALARIES 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-867-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-867-380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-867-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-867-460 Sand Point Pool Pro     $ 157, 771. 16 0.00 0. 00      $ 157,771. 16 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-867-461 Sand Point Playgro      $ 151, 000. 00    $ 151, 000.00 0. 00 0. 00 100.00%

Active E 41- 800-867-475 SUPPLIES 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-867- 850 CAPITAL CONSTR 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 867 Sand Point School 308, 771. 16     $ 151, 000.00 0. 00     $ 157, 771. 16 48. 90%

Active E 41- 800-868- 300 SALARIES 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-868- 350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800- 868- 380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 868-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0. 00 460. 00 0. 00 460. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 868-475 SUPPLIES 0. 00 164.36 164. 36 164. 36 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 868-551 LEGAL 0.00      $ 16, 921. 72    $ 11, 852. 50      -$ 16, 921. 72 0.00%

Active E 41- 800- 868-577 FUEL 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800- 868-850 CAPITAL CONSTR    $ 2, 785,000.00      $ 11, 135. 00      $ 2, 970. 00    $ 2, 773, 865. 00 0. 40%

Active E 41- 800- 868-852 ASPHALT PAVING 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 868 King Cove School 2, 785, 000. 00      $ 28, 681. 08     $ 14, 986. 86   $ 2, 756, 318. 92 1. 03%

Active E 41- 800-869-300 SALARIES 0.00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-869-350 FRINGE BENEFITS 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-869-380 CONTRACT LABO 0. 00       $ 1, 240. 00 0. 00 1, 240.00 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-869-400 TRAVEL AND PER 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 800-869-475 SUPPLIES 0. 00      $ 18,506.01      $ 1, 164. 15      -$ 18, 506. 01 0.00%

Active E 41- 800-869-942 PROPERTY LEASE 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

SUBDEPT 869 COLD BAY SCHOOL 0.00      $ 19, 746.01       $ 1, 164. 15      -$ 19,746.01 0.00%

Total DEPT 800 CAPITAL- SCHOOL     $ 3, 093, 771. 16    $ 224, 147. 19     $ 16, 151. 01    $ 2, 869,623.97 7.25%

DEPT 900 OTHER

tanderson
Typewritten Text
17



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 01/ 05/ 16 3:03 PM

Expenditure Guideline©
Page 11

Current Period: DECEMBER 15- 16

15- 16 15- 16 DECEMBER 15- 16    % of YTD

YTD Budget YTD Amt MTD Amt YTD Balance Budget

Active E 41- 900-000-753 MISC EXPENSE 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

Active E 41- 900-000-880 LAND 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0.00 0. 00%

SUBDEPT 000 0.00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00%

Total DEPT 900 OTHER 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00 0. 00%

Total Fund 41 MAINTENANCE RESERVE 3, 093, 771. 16    $ 224, 147. 19     $ 16, 151. 01    $ 2, 869,623. 97 7. 25%

FUND

tanderson
Typewritten Text
18

tanderson
Typewritten Text



 

INVESTMENT REPORT  

 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
Not available at this time.

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Consent Agenda 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
TO:   Mayor Mack and Assembly 
 
FROM:  Anne Bailey, Assistant Borough Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 5, 2016 
 
RE:  Employee Handbook Revisions to Include Marijuana 
 
Alaska’s Act to Tax and Regulate the Production, Sale and Use of Marijuana (the “Marijuana 
Law”) has two major functions: ending state-level marijuana prohibition and creating a regulated 
commercial marijuana industry. The Marijuana Law became effective on February 24, 2015. On 
that day, possession of small amounts of marijuana for personal use became lawful and local 
governments did not have authority to alter this provision of the law. Commercial marijuana 
follows a different timeline. If you are interested in learning more about this please let me know.  
 
It is recommended that local government should identify interests and priorities, particularly for 
marijuana commerce. Since communities within the Borough should address the commerce 
portion it is recommended that the Borough accomplish the following by February 24, 2015, or 
soon thereafter: 
 

1. Review employee and workplace policies to ensure that they continue to prohibit 
marijuana use, possession, and intoxication in the workplace; clarify policies and inform 
employees of the continued (or changed) policy regarding drug testing and marijuana 
specifically.  

2. Review smoking policies and ordinances to ensure that they cover marijuana smoke. 
Determine whether the policies and ordinances cover vaporizer use.  

 
Therefore, we need to update the Aleutians East Borough Employee Handbook to make sure that 
our policies do not accidently exempt marijuana from employment and drug-free workplace 
policies.  
 
The Drug Free Workplace Act (“DFWA”) and other federal laws governing workplace safety 
remain unchanged; marijuana still remains a schedule I drug under federal law. DFWA applies to 
all recipients of federal grants.  
 
Since the Aleutians East Borough receives federal funding the Borough needs to change their 
policy to incorporate marijuana. Below is the information in the AEB Employee Handbook that 



references drugs and alcohol. The appropriate changes to include marijuana have been included 
and are available for review.  
 
Please note at this time the Borough is solely interested in only updating the appropriate sections 
regarding the marijuana issue. We understand that other portions of the Employee Handbook 
need to be updated but we will do those at a later date.  
 
The recommended changes can be found in Exhibit A.  
 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 16 - 12 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK  

 
 WHEREAS, on February 24, 2015 the Alaska’s Act to Tax and Regulate the production, 
sale and use of marijuana (the “Marijuana Law”) became effective; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marijuana Law has two major functions: ending state-level prohibition 
and creating a regulated commercial marijuana industry; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on February 24, 2015 possession of small amount of marijuana for personal 
use became lawful and local governments did not have authority to alter this provisions of the 
law; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Drug Free Workplace Place (“DFWA”) and other federal laws 
governing workplace safety remain unchanged and marijuana still remains a schedule I drug 
under federal law; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since DFWA applies to all recipients of federal grants it is recommended 
that the Borough review and update the Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures 
Employee Handbook to ensure that the Borough continues to prohibit marijuana use, possession, 
and intoxication in the workplace; to clarify policies and inform employees of the policy 
regarding drug testing and to ensure that the smoking policies cover marijuana smoke and 
consider including the policies to cover vaporizers use. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Aleutians East Borough Assembly 
approves and incorporates the following amendments to the Aleutians East Borough Policies and 
Procedures Employee Handbook outlined in Exhibit A.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Aleutians East Borough on this 14th Day of January 
2016.  
 
       _______________________________ 
       Stanley Mack, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Clerk 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

Exhibit A 
 

(Borough decision items are shown in RED) 

 
 
 

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 
 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 29, 2009 Commented [AB1]: Approved Date By Assembly 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

GENERAL PROVISIONS ......................................................................................................................... 5 

1.01 INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT .......................................................................................................... 5 

1.02 NATURE OF EMPLOYMENT .............................................................................................................. 5 

1.03 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS ................................................................................................................... 6 

1.04 DEFINITIONS. ................................................................................................................................ 6 

1.05 SPEAKING FOR THE BOROUGH; LOBBYING. ................................................................................... 11 

1.06 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES......................................................................................................... 11 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW .................................................................................................................... 11 

2.01 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ............................................................................................. 11 

2.02 IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE ................................................................................................. 12 

2.03 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION POLICY STATEMENT ................................................................................... 12 

2.04 DISABILITY ACCOMODATION ........................................................................................................ 13 

CLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS ....................................................................................................... 13 

3.01 EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES .......................................................................................................... 13 

3.02 PROBATIONARY PERIOD ............................................................................................................... 15 

WORK SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................................ 16 

4.01 HOLIDAYS .................................................................................................................................... 16 

4.02 WORK SCHEDULES ....................................................................................................................... 17 

4.03 OVERTIME .................................................................................................................................... 17 

4.04 EMERGENCY CLOSINGS ................................................................................................................ 18 

4.05 ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY ................................................................................................. 18 

LEAVE AND COMP TIME ...................................................................................................................... 19 

5.01 JURY DUTY ................................................................................................................................... 19 

5.02 WITNESS DUTY ............................................................................................................................ 19 

5.03 FAMILY LEAVE .............................................................................................................................. 20 

5.04 MILITARY LEAVE .......................................................................................................................... 22 

5.05 MATERNITY-RELATED ABSENCES .................................................................................................. 23 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

5.06 LIFE-THREATENING ILLNESSES IN THE WORKPLACE ..................................................................... 23 

5.07 SICK LEAVE .................................................................................................................................. 24 

5.08 TIME OFF TO VOTE ...................................................................................................................... 27 

5.09 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ................................................................................................................... 27 

5.10 LEAVE WITHOUT PAY (LWOP) ....................................................................................................... 28 

5.11 COMPENSATORY TIME (COMP TIME). ............................................................................................ 29 

EMPLOYEE CONDUCT .......................................................................................................................... 33 

6.01 EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND WORK RULES ....................................................................................... 33 

6.02 DRUG AND ALCOHOL USE ............................................................................................................. 34 

6.03 DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING [See also Section 10.01C, regarding the benefits available for drug and 

alcohol rehabilitation.] ................................................................................................................................... 35 

6.04 SMOKING ..................................................................................................................................... 38 

6.05 SAFETY ........................................................................................................................................ 38 

6.06 USE OF EQUIPMENT ..................................................................................................................... 38 

6.07 USE OF TELEPHONES .................................................................................................................... 39 

6.08 REST PERIODS ............................................................................................................................. 39 

6.09 PERSONAL APPEARANCE ............................................................................................................... 39 

6.10 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT ................................................................................................................ 39 

6.11 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  [See also Section 1.04, Definition of Nepotism] ...................................... 40 

6.12 SECURITY INSPECTIONS ............................................................................................................... 40 

6.13 SOLICITATION ............................................................................................................................. 41 

6.14 SEXUAL AND OTHER UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT .............................................................................. 41 

6.15 PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE ............................................................................................................ 42 

SEPARATION FROM BOROUGH EMPLOYMENT ................................................................................... 43 

7.01 EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION ........................................................................................................ 43 

7.02 RETURN OF PROPERTY ................................................................................................................. 44 

7.03 SEVERENCE PAY ........................................................................................................................... 44 

  



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 4 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

RECORDS............................................................................................................................................. 45 

8.01 NON-DISCLOSURE ........................................................................................................................ 45 

8.02 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES ...................................................................................................... 45 

8.03 EMPLOYMENT REFERENCE CHECKS ............................................................................................... 45 

8.04 PERSONNEL DATA CHANGES ......................................................................................................... 46 

8.05 EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS ....................................................................................................... 46 

PAY AND COMPENSATION .................................................................................................................. 46 

9.01 PAYDAYS ...................................................................................................................................... 46 

9.02 PAY ADVANCES............................................................................................................................. 46 

9.03 ADMINISTRATIVE PAY CORRECTIONS ........................................................................................... 46 

9.04 PAY DEDUCTIONS......................................................................................................................... 47 

9.05 ANNUAL EVALUATION AND SALARY ADJUSTMENT ......................................................................... 47 

BENEFITS ............................................................................................................................................ 48 

10.01 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .................................................................................................................... 48 

10.02 VACATION BENEFITS .................................................................................................................... 49 

10.03 CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE ............................................................................................................. 50 

10.04 RELOCATION BENEFITS ................................................................................................................ 51 

10.05 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE ....................................................................................... 51 

10.06 BENEFITS CONTINUATION (COBRA) .............................................................................................. 52 

TRAVEL AND PER DIEM ....................................................................................................................... 52 

11.01 BUSINESS TRAVEL EXPENSES........................................................................................................ 52 

FORMS  ............................................................................................................................................. 56 

REQUEST FOR LEAVE FORM ............................................................................................................................................. 56 

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT ............................ 57 

CRIMINAL HISTORY, DRIVING, BACKGROUND, AND CREDIT CHECK AUTHORIZATION FORM ........................... 58 

AEB ORGANIZATIONAL CHART – March 2009 ............................................................................................................... 60 

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM........................................................................................................................... 61 

 
 
 
  



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 5 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.01 INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT  

A. This Employee Handbook (the handbook) is designed to acquaint employees with the 
Aleutians East Borough (the Borough or the AEB) and provide employees with 
information about working conditions, employee benefits and some of the policies 
affecting Borough employment.  Employees should read, understand, and comply with 
all provisions of the handbook.  It describes many employee responsibilities and outlines 

the programs developed by the Aleutians East Borough to benefit employees.   

B. One of the Borough’s objectives is to provide a work environment that is safe and 
conducive to personal growth and to professional development.  This handbook is 

intended to facilitate that goal. 

C. No handbook can anticipate every circumstance or question about policy.  As the 
Borough continues to grow, we will inevitably need to change some of the policies 
described in this handbook.  For that reason, the Borough reserves the right to revise, 
supplement, or rescind any policies or any portion(s) of the handbook from time to time 
as the AEB deems appropriate, in its sole and absolute discretion.  Borough employees 

will be notified of such changes if and when they occur. 

1.02 NATURE OF EMPLOYMENT  

A. This handbook is intended to provide Borough employees with a general understanding 
of the AEB’s personnel policies.  Employees are encouraged to familiarize themselves 
with the contents of this handbook, for it will answer many common questions 

concerning employment with the Borough. 

B. However, this handbook cannot anticipate every situation or answer every question 
about employment.  It is not an employment contract and it is not intended to create 
contractual obligations of any kind.  No Borough employee is bound to continue the 
employment relationship if the employee chooses at any time, in his or her sole 
discretion, to end the relationship.  Similarly, for all employees who are not regular 
employees as defined in Section 1.04 of this handbook, including probationary,  
temporary and part-time employees, management and confidential employees who 
occupy positions that are designated as exempt or non-classified or are not otherwise 
subject to the merit system, the Aleutians East Borough may terminate the employment 
relationship at any time, with or without cause, so long as such termination does not 
constitute a violation of state or federal law or constitutions.  Such employees do not 
have a right to a hearing regarding the termination.  An employee who holds a classified 
position and who has acquired regular status may be terminated for cause at any time 
and has other rights, including the right (upon appropriate written request) to a hearing 
under certain conditions.  Those rights are described more fully elsewhere in this 
handbook. 

C. To retain necessary flexibility in the administration of policies and procedures, the 
Aleutians East Borough reserves the right to change, revise, or eliminate any of the 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 6 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

policies and/or benefits described in the handbook.  The only recognized deviations 
from the stated policies are those authorized in writing and signed by the Mayor of the 
Aleutians East Borough. 

1.03 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS  

A. The Aleutians East Borough believes that the work conditions, wages and benefits it 
offers to its employees are competitive with those offered by other employers in this 
geographic area and in this type of employment.  If employees have concerns about 
work conditions or compensation, they are strongly encouraged to discuss their 
concerns with their supervisors. 

B. The Borough’s experience has been that when employees communicate candidly and 
directly with their supervisors, the work environment can be excellent, communications 
can be clear, and attitudes can be positive.  The Borough is committed to responding 
effectively to concerns articulated by employees. 

C. Appointments and promotions are made on the basis of merit, except for the employees 
appointed to managerial or confidential positions that have been designated by 

ordinance as exempt from the merit system. 

D. Employees appointed to exempt or partially-exempt positions serve at the pleasure of 
the appointing authority, shall receive such benefits as are required by law and those 
as to which there is written agreement between the employee and the appointing 
authority, and may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, and without right 
to any hearing, grievance or other procedure, except as provided in the individual 
employee’s contract of employment. 

E. Non-exempt employees who have acquired regular status may be terminated, demoted, 
suspended without pay, or made to suffer other direct adverse financial consequences 
only after being given an opportunity to explain or rebut the facts given as the basis for 
the adverse action.  Written notice of the proposed adverse action shall be given to the 
employee as provided in this handbook, and shall contain a description of the facts 
which are the basis for the adverse action, the date upon which the adverse action will 
take effect, and the right of the employee at any reasonable time before the adverse 
action takes effect to explain or rebut the facts given.  The provisions for a hearing 

under Section 6.15 of this handbook apply. 

1.04 DEFINITIONS.    

A. ANNUAL EVALUATION.  [See also Section 9.05A]  The annual evaluation is a type of 
performance review.  [Other performance reviews may take place at the end of an 
employee’s probationary period, after a disciplinary action or corrective action plan has 
been completed, or at such other time as the AEB deems appropriate and beneficial.]  
The annual evaluation should be completed once each year, in the month which 
contains the anniversary date of the employee’s start date in the current position.  The 
annual evaluation may serve as the basis for a merit pay adjustment [see Section 

9.05C]. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 7 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

B. COMP TIME (COMPENSATORY TIME).  [See also Sections 3.01.C (non-exempt 
employees and exempt employees), 4.03 (overtime), and 5.10 (comp time)].  Comp 
time is time for which an AEB employee will be paid and receive the benefits customarily 
due to that employee, even though the employee does not engage in any Borough work 
during the period in which the comp time is taken. Note that comp time must be taken 
within three (3) pay periods of the date when the comp time is earned, unless otherwise 
authorized in writing.  [See footnote 10 to Section 4.03.] 

C. CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE.  As a benefit of employment, the Borough provides flex-time 
scheduling, flexible leave, job sharing and sick leave benefits to eligible employees. [See 

also Section 10.03] 

D. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  [See also Section 6.11 of this handbook and the Borough’s 
2-28-08 policy regarding financial disclosure1.]  A conflict of interest occurs when an 
individual or an organization has an interest that might compromise their impartiality or 
reliability.  A conflict of interest exists even if no improper act results from it, and can 
create an appearance of impropriety that can undermine confidence in the conflicted 
individual or organization.  Note that conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to, 
any official action in which a Borough employee or elected Borough official has a 
substantial personal or financial interest.  (Examples: participating in a zoning decision 
which increases the value of one’s own real property; hiring or being the supervisor of 
an immediate family member; or assigning a Borough contract to a business owned by 

a member of one’s family.)    

E. COST-OF-LIVING ADJUSTMENTS [COLA].  [See also Section 9.05B].  A pay adjustment 
which may be given annually to employees who exhibit satisfactory performance as 

documented by evaluation.  Cost-of-living adjustments: 

1. Are given only when funded by the Assembly; and 

2. Are based upon the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for Anchorage as computed for 

the preceding fiscal year. 

F. DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING.  [See also Section 6.03]  The Borough has a program of 
drug and alcohol testing which is designed to enhance the Borough’s policy on drug 
and alcohol use [see Section 6.02].  Note that drug and alcohol testing may be required: 

1. As a condition of an offer of Borough employment; 

2. After an employee has an accident while on the job; 

3. When an employee, when on the job, exhibits signs or symptoms of alcohol use 
or drug use; or 

                                                 
1  The AEB’s financial disclosure policy requires that “a Disclosure of Gratuity Received form shall be filed by every 

employee and elected official of the Aleutians East Borough (AEB) who has received a gratuity, from any source, 
having a value of more than fifty dollars ($50.00).”  This includes cash, checks, negotiable instruments, 

transportation, lodging, meals or gifts which are paid for by another individual or organization. 
 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 8 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

4. Upon reasonable suspicion of illicit or inappropriate use of alcohol or drugs. 

5. Required drug and alcohol testing is paid for by the Borough and results of the 

tests become the property of the Borough. 

G. EVALUATION.  [See “performance review” below.] 

H. EXEMPT.  [See also Section 3.01B].  An exempt employee is excluded from specific 
provisions of federal wage and hour laws (in particular, such employees are not paid 
overtime).  Each employee’s job description should state whether that position is 
exempt.  An employee who is not exempt is referred to as “non-exempt” and is entitled 

to overtime pay under specific provisions of federal and state laws. 

I. FAMILY [See also Sections 5.03 (family leave) and 5.07 (sick leave).] The individual’s 
spouse or significant other, parent, step-parent, child, step-child, adopted child, 
grandparent, sibling, step-sibling, aunt, uncle, cousin, niece or nephew; or the spouse’s 
or significant other’s parent, step-parent,  child, step-child, adopted child, grandparent, 
sibling, step-sibling, aunt, uncle, cousin, niece or nephew; or any person other than 
those previously listed, who is currently living in the same household with the individual 
or is legally dependent upon the individual2.  Whenever the term “family” (as distinct 

from “immediate family”) is used in this handbook, it refers to this definition. 

J. FLEX-TIME SCHEDULING.  [See also Section 4.02B].   A non-standard work schedule, 
established for the purpose of allowing employees to vary their starting and ending 

times each day, within established limits. 

K. FLOATING HOLIDAYS.  [See also Section 4.01F].  Eligible employees (including all 
exempt employees and those non-exempt employees who have completed 90 calendar 
days of eligible service) may select two (2) additional holidays, in addition to the 
“recognized holidays” listed in Section 4.01A, for which they will receive paid time off.  
Note that all floating holidays must be scheduled with the prior written approval of the 

employee’s supervisor. 

L. HOLIDAY TIME OFF.  [See also Section 4.01A].  The “recognized holidays” which all 
eligible Borough employees may take as paid time off. 

M. IMMEDIATE FAMILY.  [See also Sections 5.09A and 5.09E (bereavement leave)].  The 
individual’s spouse or significant other, parent, step-parent, child, step-child, adopted 
child, sibling or step-sibling; or the spouse’s or significant other’s parent, step-parent, 
child, step-child, adopted child, sibling or step-sibling; or any person other than those 
previously listed, who is currently living in the same household with the individual or 
legally dependent upon the individual3.  Whenever the term “immediate family” (as 

distinct from “family”) is used in this handbook, it refers to this definition. 

                                                 
2  A ward is legally dependent upon his or her guardian; a person listed as a dependent on an income tax return 

is a legal dependent of the individual(s) filing the return. 
3  A ward is legally dependent upon his or her guardian; a person listed as a dependent on an income tax return 

is a legal dependent of the individual(s) filing the return. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 9 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

N. LWOP (LEAVE WITHOUT PAY).  [See also Section 5.09 of this handbook.]  A period of 
no more than 120 work days every two (2) years, which an employee may take [after 
the employee has utilized all available annual leave, upon written request by the 
employee and approval by Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee] away from work, 
with no pay and no benefits.  [There are exceptions during which benefits may accrue; 
see Section 5.09E].  Note that there is no guarantee of reinstatement in the employee’s 
former position at the end of a period of LWOP. 

O. MERIT PAY.  [See also Section 9.05C].  A pay adjustment awarded by the Borough to 
recognize truly superior employee performance.  Merit pay [which is pay above the 
COLA for a given year] may be awarded at the sole discretion of the Borough Mayor or 
designee, based upon the formal evaluation and performance review process and other 

factors deemed relevant by the Borough Mayor or designee. 

P. NEPOTISM.  Nepotism is a special type of conflict of interest, involving family members.  
In particular, nepotism includes any act by a public officer4 in appointing another to a 
position by reason of family relationship to the appointing authority.    “Bestowal of 
patronage by public officers in appointing others to positions by reason of blood or 
marital relationship to [the] appointing authority.5”  Like a conflict of interest, nepotism 
occurs when an individual has an interest that might compromise their impartiality or 
reliability.  Nepotism can create an appearance of impropriety that can undermine 

confidence in the public officer or organization.  [See definition of “family” in 1.04 I.] 

Q. PAID HOLIDAY TIME OFF.  [See also Section 4.01].   Time off with pay, which may be 
taken by all eligible employees, immediately upon assignment to an eligible employment 
classification, on the “recognized holidays” listed in Section 4.01A. 

R. PAID LEAVE.  [See also the vacation leave and sick leave sections of this handbook.]  
Paid time off is time away from work, which an employee is authorized to take, when 
the employee’s absence from work does not result in any decrease in wages (or salary) 

and benefits which the employee normally receives. 

S. PAID SICK LEAVE.  [See also Section 5.07].   Paid time off (with appropriate benefits) 
which may be used for an absence from work either due to the employee’s own illness 
or injury, or the illness or injury of a family member who resides in the employee’s 

household.  [See Section 5.07C for situations to which paid sick leave may be extended.] 

T. PARTIALLY-EXEMPT.  [See also Section 1.03D].   An employee who has been appointed 
to a job, the position description for which describes it as “partially exempt,” who serves 
at the pleasure of the appointing authority and receives such benefits as are required 
by law and those to which there is a written agreement between the employee and the 
appointing authority.  Except when otherwise provided in the partially-exempt 
employee’s written contract, that employee may be terminated at any time, with or 

without cause, and without right to any hearing, grievance or other procedure. 

                                                 
4  Public officers include both elected officials and appointed officials. 

5  Black’s Law Dictionary, Revised Fourth Edition. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 10 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

U. PERFORMANCE REVIEW.  [See also footnote to Section 9.05].  An evaluation of a 
Borough employee’s work, normally completed by the employee’s supervisor, which 
may take place at the end of an employee’s probationary period (end-of-probation 
review); on the employee’s anniversary-of-employment date (annual review); when the 
employee is considered for merit pay (merit review); after a disciplinary action or 
corrective action plan has been completed (disciplinary review); or at such other time 
as the AEB deems appropriate and beneficial. 

V. PERS.  The State of Alaska, Public Employees’ Retirement System.  This is the system 

under which all eligible Borough employees may retire after 30 years of service. 

W. PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE.  [See also Section 6.15, particularly subsections D. and E., 
of this handbook.]  A sequence of steps which is normally followed when corrective 
action is appropriate for a Borough employee.  Except in unusual circumstances, the 
sequence will involve an oral warning or a written warning for a first offense; a 
suspension or demotion or both for a second or subsequent offense; and termination 
of employment for a third or subsequent offense.  Certain types of employee problems 
are serious enough to justify either suspension or termination of employment, without 

going through all of the usual progressive discipline steps. 

X. PTO (PAID TIME OFF).  [See also Sections 4.01, 5.07, 5.08 and 10.02 of this handbook.]  
Time for which a Borough employee is paid (and, when eligible, continues to receive 
benefits), even though the employee is not working during that time.  Examples of PTO 

include sick leave, paid vacation, holidays and floating holidays. 

X.Y. PUBLIC. Public place means a place to which people or a substantial group of 
persons have access and includes, but is not limited to, streets, highways, sidewalks, 
alleys, transportation facilities, parking areas, schools, places of business or 
amusement, parks, playgrounds, and prisons.  

Y.Z. REGULAR EMPLOYEE.  [See also Section 1.03E of this handbook.]   A Borough employee 
who is either exempt and working under a contract or job description which provides 
for an indefinite6 term of employment; or who is non-exempt and working under a 
contract or job description which provides for an indefinite term of employment.   

Z.AA. RELATIVE.  [See also Section 6.11].  The Aleutians East Borough defines a relative as 
any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the 

employee is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage. 

AA.BB. SAFETY PROGRAM.  [See also Section 6.05].  The Borough’s program to ensure a 
safe and healthful work environment for Borough employees and visitors.  This program 
is coordinated with the Borough’s insurance carriers and all employees are encouraged 

to participate and make suggestions. 

                                                 
6  An indefinite term of employment is one which has no explicit ending date.  If there is a definite ending date 

in the contract or job description, then it is a definite term of employment. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 11 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

BB.CC. SEXUAL HARASSMENT.  [See also Section 6.14].  Gender-based persecution or 
gender-based behavior which the victim perceives as oppressive, worrisome or 
provocative.  Sexual harassment is unlawful and any Borough employee who observes 

or experiences sexual harassment should report it. 

CC.DD. SICK LEAVE.  [See also Section 5.07].  See “paid sick leave” [above]. 

DD.EE. TERMINATION.  [See also Section 6.15C].  The end of a Borough employee’s 
employment with the Borough.  Termination may occur at the employee’s option or at 

the Borough’s initiative. 

EE.FF. VACATION.  [See also Section 10.02].  Paid time off (with the benefits for which the 
employee is eligible) to provide opportunities for rest, relaxation and personal pursuits.  
The amount of paid vacation time Borough employees receive each year increases with 
the length of their Borough employment.  [See table, “Vacation Earning Schedule,” in 
Section 10.02B]. 

1.05 SPEAKING FOR THE BOROUGH; LOBBYING.    

A. The Borough Mayor is the officially-designated spokesperson for the Borough.  Some 
Borough employees (for example, the Borough Administrator and the Public Information 
Officer) have in their job descriptions some duties which require them to speak on the 
Borough’s behalf in certain circumstances.  Borough employees whose job descriptions 
do not explicitly include a duty to speak on the Borough’s behalf should avoid doing so 
except when specifically authorized or instructed to do so by the appropriate supervisor.  
A Borough employee should be involved in lobbying (either in Juneau or in 
Washington, D.C.) on the Borough’s behalf only when specifically authorized 

to do so by the Borough Mayor.  

1.06 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.     

A. Numerous policies and procedures regarding various matters (for example, reporting 
requirements when a Borough official or employee receives a gratuity), some of which 
may cover items not mentioned in this handbook, have been promulgated by the 
Borough7.  Such policies and procedures become effective on the date specified by the 
Borough Administrator in each policy or procedure.  Questions about such policies and 

procedures should be directed to Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

2.01 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY  

                                                 
7  The Borough’s intent is to incorporate existing policies and procedures into this Handbook.  Policies and 

Procedures which are adopted in the future, will be circulated to the Borough Clerk, Borough Treasurer, and 

Borough employees as they are adopted.  Any employee who has questions regarding policies and procedures, 
should ask their supervisor. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 12 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

A. In order to provide equal opportunities for employment and opportunities for 
advancement to all individuals except those applying for or appointed to positions that 
are exempt from the merit system, employment decisions at the Aleutians East Borough 

will be based on merit, qualifications, and abilities. 

B. Except where required or permitted by law, employment practices will not be influenced 
or affected by an applicant’s or employee’s race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
age, marital status, disabilities, or any other characteristic protected by law.   This non-
discrimination policy governs all aspects of employment including selection, job 
assignment, compensation, discipline, termination, and access to benefits and training 

for all employees, whether exempt from or covered by the merit system. 

C. Employees with questions or concerns about any type of discrimination in the workplace 
are encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee.  Employees can raise concerns and make reports without 
fear of reprisal.  Any Borough employee found to be engaging in any type of unlawful 
discrimination or harassment (including, but not limited to, sexual harassment) will be 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

2.02 IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE  

A. The Aleutians East Borough is committed to employing only United States citizens and 
aliens who are authorized to work in the United States.  The AEB does not unlawfully 

discriminate on the basis of citizenship or national origin. 

B. In order to comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new 
employee must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 and present 
documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility as a condition of 
employment.  Former employees who are rehired must also complete the form if they 
have not completed an I-9 with the Aleutians East Borough within the past three (3) 
years, or if their previous I-9 is no longer valid. 

C. Each Borough employee shall timely notify the AEB of changes in immigration status 
and shall timely provide updated I-9 forms and documentation to the AEB as such 
changes occur.  Failure to provide timely notification or updated forms may be cause 
for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of Borough employment. 

D. Employees with questions or seeking more information on immigration law issues are 
encouraged to contact the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee.  Employees may 

raise questions or complaints about immigration law compliance without fear of reprisal. 

2.03 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION POLICY STATEMENT  

A. It is the Aleutians East Borough’s policy to provide and promote equal employment 
opportunity for all persons and to prohibit discrimination.  The Aleutians East Borough 
Assembly has directed all Borough staff to ensure that equal opportunity applies to and 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 13 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

is an integral part of every personnel policy and practice in the employment, education, 

development, advancement and treatment of its employees. 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, decisions regarding employment and 
promotions shall be based solely upon an individual’s qualifications.  When well-qualified 
individuals who are current AEB employees are available, appointments to fill vacancies 
shall be by promotion from within the Borough’s current employees.  When two or more 
otherwise-equally-qualified applicants are competing for a currently-open position, 
preference shall be given to the applicant who is a resident of the Borough. 

2.04 DISABILITY ACCOMODATION  

A. The Aleutians East Borough is committed to complying fully with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) and ensuring equal opportunity in employment for qualified 
persons with disabilities.  All employment practices and activities are conducted on a 
non-discriminatory basis. 

B. Note that neither drug addiction nor alcohol addiction is a disability under 

the ADA or most other disability laws.   

C. The Borough’s hiring procedures are designed to provide employment opportunities to 
persons with disabilities.  Pre-employment inquiries (which may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, pre-employment physicals, reference checks, background checks 
and pre-employment drug testing) are made only regarding an applicant’s ability to 

perform the duties of the position for which the individual is applying. 

D. Reasonable accommodation is available to all disabled employees, in situations where 
their disability affects the performance of job functions.  All employment decisions are 
based on the merits of the situation, in accordance with defined criteria.  Employment 

decisions are not made based solely upon the disability of the individual. 

E. Qualified individuals with disabilities are entitled to equal pay and other forms of 
compensation (or changes in compensation) as well as equal treatment in job 
assignments, classifications, organizational structures, position descriptions, promotion 
and seniority lists. 

F. The Aleutians East Borough shall not discriminate against any qualified employees or 
applicants because they are related to a person with a disability.  The AEB will comply 
with any state or local law that provides individuals with disabilities greater protection 
than the ADA. 

G. This policy is neither exhaustive nor exclusive.  The Borough is committed to taking all 
other action necessary to ensure equal employment opportunity for persons with 
disabilities in accordance with the ADA and all other applicable federal, state, and local 

laws. 

CLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS 

3.01 EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES   



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 14 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

A. In this section, the AEB intends to clarify the definitions of employment classifications.  
We want all Borough employees to understand their employment status and eligibility 
for benefits.   These classifications do not guarantee employment for any specified 

period of time. 

B. Each Borough employee is designated as either NON-EXEMPT or EXEMPT from federal 
wage and hour laws.  NON-EXEMPT employees are entitled to overtime pay under the 
specific provisions of federal laws.  EXEMPT Borough employees are excluded from 
specific provisions of federal wage and hour laws. 

C. In addition to the above categories, each Borough employee will belong to one other 

employment category; either: 

1. REGULAR FULL-TIME employees:  this includes Borough employees who are not 
in temporary or probationary status and who are regularly scheduled to work the 
Aleutians East Borough’s full-time (40 hour per week) schedule.  Generally, such 
AEB employees are eligible for the Borough’s benefit package, subject to the terms, 

conditions, and limitations of each benefit program. 

2. REGULAR PART-TIME employees:  this includes Borough employees who are not 
assigned to temporary or probationary status and who are regularly scheduled to 
work less than the full-time work schedule, but at least twenty (20) hours per 
week.  Regular part-time employees are eligible for some benefits sponsored by 
the Aleutians East Borough, subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of 
each benefit program. 

3. PART-TIME employees:  this includes Borough employees who are not assigned to 
temporary or probationary status and who are scheduled to work less than twenty 
(20) hours per week.  While such Borough employees receive all legally mandated 
benefits (such as Social Security and Workers’ Compensation), they are ineligible 
for all the AEB’s other benefit programs. 

4. PROBATIONARY employees:  this includes Borough employees whose 
performance is being evaluated to determine whether further employment in a 
specific position within the Aleutians East Borough is appropriate.  Employees who 
satisfactorily complete the probationary period will be notified of their new 

employment classification (See Section 3.02). 

5. TEMPORARY employees:  this includes Borough employees who are hired as 
interim replacements or for temporary work, on a predetermined work schedule 
that does not extend beyond six (6) calendar months.  A temporary employee may 
be terminated, demoted, or suspended with or without cause, at the discretion of 
the appointing authority8.  If employees hired on a temporary basis become 

                                                 
8  If the appointing authority is unavailable for any reason, the termination, demotion or suspension (or other 

disciplinary action) may be initiated and carried out by the appointing authority’s designee. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 15 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

permanent employees, they are entitled to pro-rata sick leave and annual leave 

accruals retroactive to their date of hire. 

6. PER DIEM employees:  this includes Borough employees who are Regular Full-
Time and Regular Part-Time employees and who accept additional compensation 
in lieu of participation in all but legally mandated benefit programs.  The AEB offers 
this category in limited classifications and to limited numbers of employees.  
Individuals participating in this program must sign waivers of their rights to 
participate in the benefit programs applicable to regular employees.  Service in 
this category cannot be credited in any way toward any benefit program, even if 
the employee is later assigned to a benefit-eligible category.  A change to or from 
this category can be accomplished only with the prior written recommendation of 

the Borough Mayor, Borough Administrator, or designee. 

3.02 PROBATIONARY PERIOD   

A. The probationary period is intended to give new employees the opportunity to 
demonstrate a satisfactory level of performance and to determine whether the new 
position meets their expectations.  The Borough uses this probationary period to 
evaluate employee capabilities, work habits and overall performance.  Either the 
employee or the AEB may end the employment relationship at will at any time during 

or after the probationary period, with or without cause, hearing, or advance notice. 

B. All new and rehired employees work on a probationary basis for the first six (6) months 
after their date of hire.  Employees who are promoted or transferred within the Borough 
must complete a new probationary period of the same length with each promotion or 
transfer to a new position.  Any significant absence9 will automatically extend a 
probationary period by the length of the absence.  If the Borough determines that the 
designated probationary period does not allow sufficient time to evaluate the 
employee’s performance thoroughly, the probationary period may be extended for a 

specified period10. 

C. In cases of promotions or transfers within the Aleutians East Borough, an employee 
who, in the sole judgment of AEB management, is not successful in the new position 
can be removed from that position at any time during the new probationary period.  If 
this occurs, the employee may be allowed to return to his or her former position or to 

                                                 
9  The determination of whether an absence (which may be either contiguous days not at work or the aggregate 

of several separate absences) is a “significant absence” in the sense intended here shall be made by the 
employee’s immediate supervisor.  If there is a conflict regarding whether an absence has become a “significant 

absence” as used in this section, a final determination shall be made in writing by the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee. 

 
10  Such an extension of the probationary period shall be made in writing by the Mayor, Borough Administrator or 

designee.  The end date of the extended probationary period shall be specified in the same document notifying 

the employee of the extension.  No employee shall be subject to more than one (1) such extension of the 
probationary period. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 16 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

a comparable job for which the employee is qualified, depending upon the availability 

of vacancies in such positions and the Borough’s needs. 

D. Upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period, employees who are not in 
temporary positions and those who are scheduled to work 20 hours or more per week 

enter the “regular” employment classification. 

E. During the probationary period, new employees are eligible for those benefits that are 
required by law, such as Workers’ Compensation insurance and Social Security.  After 
a period of time which may vary according to the requirements of each specific benefit 
program, they may also be eligible for other Borough-provided benefits, each of which 
is subject to all of the terms and conditions of that particular benefit program.  
Employees should read the information for each specific benefit program for details of 
eligibility requirements. 

F. Benefits eligibility and employment status are not changed during any secondary or 
subsequent probationary period that results from a promotion or transfer within the 

Borough. 

WORK SCHEDULE 

4.01 HOLIDAYS   

A. The Aleutians East Borough shall grant holiday time off with pay to all Borough 
employees on each of the holidays listed below (which may be referred to as 
“recognized holidays”): 

1. New Year’s Day (January 1) 

2. Presidents Day (third Monday in February) 

3. Memorial Day (last Monday in May) 

4. Independence Day (July 4) 

5. Labor Day (first Monday in September) 

6. Veteran’s Day (November 11) 

7. Thanksgiving (fourth Thursday in November) 

8. Day after Thanksgiving 

9. Christmas (December 25) 

B. According to applicable restrictions, the Aleutians East Borough will grant paid holiday 
time off to all eligible11 nonexempt employees immediately upon assignment to an 

                                                 
11  Employees on Leave Without Pay (LWOP) status are not eligible for holiday pay.  Paid holiday time off is granted 

only to those Borough employees who are in pay status both before and after the holiday in question. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 17 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

eligible employment classification.  Holiday pay will be calculated based on the 
employee’s straight-time pay rate (as of the date of the holiday) times the number of 
hours the employee would otherwise have worked on that day.  Employees in the 
following classifications are eligible for holiday time off with pay:  regular full-time 

employees and regular part-time employees. 

C. A recognized holiday that falls on a Saturday will be observed on the preceding Friday. 

A recognized holiday that falls on a Sunday will be observed on the following Monday. 

D. If a recognized holiday falls during an eligible employee’s paid absence (e.g., vacation, 
or sick leave), the employee will be ineligible for holiday pay12. 

E. If an eligible employee works on a recognized holiday, he or she will receive holiday 
pay plus wages at one and one-half times his or her straight-time rate for the hours 

worked on the holiday. 

F. Along with the recognized holidays previously listed, eligible employees will receive two 
floating holidays during each calendar year.  To be eligible for floating holidays, 
nonexempt employees must complete 90 calendar days of service in an eligible 
employment classification.  All floating holidays must be scheduled with the prior written 

approval of the employee’s supervisor. 

G. Paid time off for each of the above holidays will be counted as hours worked for the 
purposes of determining whether overtime pay is owed. 

4.02 WORK SCHEDULES   

A. Work schedules for employees vary throughout the Borough.  Supervisors will advise 
employees of their individual work schedules.  Staffing needs and operational demands 
may require variations in starting and ending times and/or variations in the total hours 
that may be scheduled for an employee to work during any given day and week.  Work 
schedules may be changed to accommodate the changing needs of the AEB.  Notice of 
such changes shall be provided by supervisors and shall be reasonable in the 

circumstances. 

B. Flex-time scheduling may be available in some cases.  When granted, the purpose of 
flex-time is to allow employees to vary their starting and ending times each day, within 
established limits.  Employees should consult their supervisors for the details of this 
program.  When flex-time is granted, the approving supervisor shall provide explicit 
written authorization for the flex-time to each such employee, and a copy of the 

authorization shall be timely conveyed to the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

4.03 OVERTIME   

                                                 
12  The Borough’s intent is to avoid any situation in which a Borough employee would earn or otherwise be entitled 

to double pay for any one time period, except when the employee actually works on a recognized holiday. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 18 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

A. When operating requirements or other needs cannot be met during regular Borough 
working hours, employees may be required to work overtime. Generally, employees will 
first be given the opportunity to volunteer for overtime work assignments.  All overtime 
work must receive the supervisor’s prior authorization13.  Overtime assignments will be 
distributed as equitably as practicable to all employees qualified to perform the required 

work. 

B. Overtime compensation is paid to all nonexempt employees according to federal wage 
and hour regulations, the Fair Labor Standards Act [FLSA] and other applicable laws.  
Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked.  Time off for sick leave, vacation leave, 
or any leave of absence will not be considered hours worked for purposes of overtime 
calculations. 

C. Where there is a prior written agreement between a non-exempt employee and the 
Borough, as defined in Section 3.01 of this handbook, the employee may receive 
compensatory time off in lieu of paid overtime.  Such compensatory time off shall be 
given in accordance with applicable federal law and regulations.  Compensatory time is 
to be used within the shortest possible time period following the overtime worked14. 

4.04 EMERGENCY CLOSINGS   

A. At times, emergencies such as severe weather, fires, power failures, earthquakes or 
tsunami warnings, can disrupt Borough operations.  In extreme cases, these 

circumstances may require the closing of a work facility.   

B. When operations are officially closed due to emergency conditions, the time off from 
scheduled work will be paid.  The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to 

temporary Borough employees. 

C. During such emergency closings, AEB employees shall make all reasonable efforts to 

talk with their supervisors and follow their supervisors’ orders. 

4.05 ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY   

A. To maintain a safe and productive work environment, the Aleutians East Borough 
expects employees to be regular in attendance and to be punctual in reporting for 
scheduled work.  Absenteeism and tardiness place a burden on other employees and 
on the Aleutians East Borough.  In the rare instances when employees cannot avoid 
being late for work or are unable to work as scheduled, they should notify their 
supervisor(s) as soon as possible (preferably in advance of the anticipated tardiness or 

absence). 

                                                 
13  Any purported “overtime” which is worked without the prior authorization of the supervisor is not work time 

and shall not be paid. 

 

14  Compensatory time must be taken within three (3) pay periods of the date when the compensatory time is 
earned, unless otherwise authorized in writing. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 19 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

LEAVE AND COMP TIME 

5.01 JURY DUTY   

A. The Borough encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by serving as 
jurors when required.  Employees in an eligible classification may request up to two 
weeks of paid jury duty leave for petit jury and four weeks for grand jury duty during 
any two (2) year period.   The Mayor may extend the period of paid jury leave for cause.  
All such extensions must be in writing and must be completed prior to the first day of 
the extended jury duty period15. Jury duty pay will be calculated on the employee’s base 
pay rate times the number of hours the employee would otherwise have worked on the 

day of absence.   

B. Employee classifications that qualify for jury duty leave are: regular full-time employees 

and regular part-time employees. 

C. If employees are required to serve jury duty beyond the period of paid jury duty leave, 
they may use any available paid time off (for example, vacation benefits) or may request 

Leave Without Pay (LWOP) for the remainder of the time spent on jury duty. 

D. Employees must show the jury duty summons to their supervisor as soon as possible 
so that the supervisor can accommodate their absence. Employees are expected to 
report for work whenever the court schedule permits.  Any compensation received by 
the employee for jury duty while the employee is on paid jury duty leave becomes the 
property of the Aleutians East Borough and the employee shall turn in all such pay to 

the AEB immediately upon its receipt. 

E. Either the Aleutians East Borough or the employee may request an excuse from jury 
duty if, in the judgment of the Mayor, the Borough Administrator or designee, the 
employee’s absence would create serious operational difficulties.  All such 
determinations shall be made in writing, signed and dated by the Borough official 

making the determination. 

F. The Borough shall continue to provide health insurance and all other benefits to which 
the employee is normally entitled, for the full term of the jury duty absence.  Benefit 
accruals, such as vacation, sick leave, or holiday benefits, shall continue during both 

paid and unpaid jury duty leave. 

5.02 WITNESS DUTY   

A. The Aleutians East Borough encourages employees to appear in court for witness duty 

when subpoenaed to do so. 

B. Immediately upon receipt of a subpoena to be a witness, the employee shall show 
the subpoena to the employee’s supervisor and allow a copy to be made.  This will allow 

                                                 
15  It is the intent of this section that such extensions may be granted for reasons such as extended travel required 

to fulfill the jury duty requirement or for an additional summons to jury duty during the two (2) year period.     

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 20 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

operating requirements to be adjusted, where necessary, to accommodate the 
employee’s absence.  The employee shall report for work whenever the court schedule 
permits. 

C. If an employee has been subpoenaed as a witness by the Aleutians East Borough, they 
will receive paid time off for the entire period of witness duty.  Employees will be granted 
a maximum of forty (40) hours of paid time off to appear in court as a witness at the 
request of a party other than the Aleutians East Borough.  Employees will be paid at 
their base rate and are free to use any remaining paid leave benefits (e.g. vacation 
leave) to receive compensation for any period of witness duty absence that would 
otherwise be unpaid.  Any compensation received by the employee for being a witness 
while on paid witness leave becomes the property of the Aleutians East Borough and 

the employee shall turn in all such pay to the AEB immediately upon its receipt. 

5.03 FAMILY LEAVE   

A. Facts about the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). 

1. The FMLA requires employers to allow eligible employees a total of twelve (12) 
weeks of leave during any one year (interpreted to mean any 12 month period), 

for one or more of the following reasons: 

a. The birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child; 

b. The care of a child, spouse or parent with a serious health condition; 

c. A serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the 
Borough job; 

d. Military exigency [see FMLA 825.126]; or 

e. Being a military care-giver caring for an injured service member [this qualifies 
for up to 26 weeks of leave in any single 12-month period per injury 

occurrence—see FMLA 825.127]. 

2.  Not all Borough employees are eligible for FMLA leave.  To be eligible for FMLA, 

the Borough employee must: 

a. Have worked for the Borough for a minimum of twelve (12) months during the 
last seven (7) years; and 

b. Have logged at least 1,250 hours of Borough work during the twelve (12) 

months immediately preceding the request for FMLA leave. 

3.  Two of the three types of FMLA leaves require the existence of a “serious health 
condition.”  The FMLA defines a serious health condition as a physical or mental 
condition involving either inpatient care (an overnight stay in a medical facility) or 
continuing treatment (defined as two or more doctor visits in a month) by a heath 
care provider (see below for definition of provider).  [See FMLA 825.113 and 

825.115.] 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 21 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

4.  Health care providers under the FMLA include (but are not necessarily limited to): 

a.  Licensed doctors of medicine or osteopathy. 

b.  Podiatrists and dentists. 

c.  Clinical psychologists and optometrists. 

d.  Chiropractors and nurse midwives. 

e.  Physician assistants and nurse practitioners. 

f.  Clinical social workers. 

5.  Returning service members are eligible for FMLA leave under the Uniformed 
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA).  Such 
veterans are eligible to receive all benefits they would have been obtained if they 
had been employed continuously by the Borough. 

6.  A service member who falls under the newly-established “exigencies” category 

qualifies for FMLA leave.    [See AMLA 825.126.]  The “exigencies” include: 

a.  Short-notice deployment; 

b.  Military events and related activities; 

c.  Childcare and school activities; 

d.  Counseling; 

e.  Post-deployment activities; 

f.  Rest and recuperation;  

g.  Financial and legal arrangements; and 

h.  Additional activities. 

7.  FMLA military care giver leave is not available for medical conditions related to 
military service, which manifest after a person is no longer in the military.  [See 
FMLA 825.127.]  Military care giver FMLA leave is available only to care for persons 
still in the military.  NOTE:  Regular FMLA benefits may be applicable to individuals 
providing care of former military members. 

B. The Borough complies with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and may allow 
family leave without pay to eligible employees who wish to take time off from work 
duties to fulfill family obligations relating directly to the birth or adoption of a child or 
the illness of a child, spouse, or parent.  Employees in the following employment 
classification(s) are eligible to request family leave as described in this policy: regular 

full-time employees and regular part-time employees. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 22 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

C. As soon as eligible employees become aware of the need for a family leave of absence, 
they should request the leave from their supervisors.  If the employee wishes to use 
accrued vacation leave or sick leave as part of the family leave, that request should be 

incorporated in the initial request for family leave. 

D. Employees requesting family leave related to the illness of a child, spouse, or parent, 
may (at the AEB’s sole discretion) be required to provide a physician’s statement 
verifying the illness, its beginning and expected ending dates, the need for the 
employee to provide care, and the estimated time required. 

E. Eligible employees16 may request up to eighteen (18) weeks of family leave within any 
twenty-four (24) month period for illness, and up to eighteen (18) weeks of family leave 
within any twelve (12) month period because of pregnancy and childbirth or adoption.  
With the supervisor’s prior written approval, an employee may take any available 

vacation leave as part of the approved period of leave. 

F. Requests for family leave will be evaluated based on a number of factors, including 
anticipated work load requirements, staffing considerations, and hardship to the 
Aleutians East Borough’s operations during the purposed period of absence.  Requests 
that cannot be accommodated17 may be denied or deferred. 

G. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of applicable insurance plans, the 
Borough will continue to provide health insurance benefits for the full period of the 

approved family leave. 

H. Benefit accruals, such as vacation, sick leave, or holiday benefits, shall be suspended 
during the period of any unpaid leave and shall resume upon return to active 

employment. 

I. Except when legally required, the Aleutians East Borough cannot and does not 
guarantee reinstatement after FMLA leave.  When a period of family leave ends, every 
reasonable effort will be made to return the employee to the same position, if it is 
available, or to a similar available position for which the employee is qualified.  If an 
employee fails to report to work immediately at the end of the approved leave period, 

the Borough may, at its sole discretion, deem the employee to have resigned. 

J. If an applicable state or federal law requires a more generous family leave benefit than 
provided under this section, the Borough will provide all family leave benefits pursuant 

to such law in lieu of the benefits provided under this section. 

5.04 MILITARY LEAVE   

                                                 
16  Please see the federal Family and Medical Leave Act for details of eligibility requirements, especially regarding 

the requirements for the amount of time on the job which must be accrued before an individual is eligible for 

family leave. 

 
17  The decision whether a request can be accommodated shall be within the sole discretion of the Borough. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 23 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

A. A military leave of absence will be granted to regular Borough employees, to attend 
scheduled drills or training or if called to active duty with the U.S. Armed Services.  A 
temporary Borough employee is not eligible for military leave. 

B. Employees will continue to receive full pay while on military leave for two (2)-week 
training assignments and shorter absences.  Any additional period of military leave, in 
excess of two (2) weeks, will be unpaid.  However, employees may use any available 
paid time off accrued (i.e., vacation leave or sick leave) for the absence.  Subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations of the applicable health insurance plans for which the 
employee is otherwise eligible, health insurance benefits will be provided by the 

Aleutians East Borough for the full term of the military leave of absence. 

C. Vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits will continue to accrue during a military leave 
of absence unless the employee is called to active duty. 

D. Employees on two (2)-week active duty training assignment or inactive duty training 
drills are required to return to work for the first regularly scheduled shift after the end 
of training, allowing for reasonable travel time.  Employees subject to military leave for 
more than two (2) weeks must apply for reinstatement according to all applicable state 
and federal laws. 

E. The requirements of any applicable federal or state law shall prevail over the 
requirements of this section to the extent such law is more beneficial to the Borough 
employee or former Borough employee.  Every reasonable effort will be made to return 
eligible former employees to their previous position or a comparable position at the end 
of any period of military leave.  Such employees will be treated as though they had 
been continuously employed by the Borough for purposes of determining benefits based 

on length of service, such as the rate of vacation accrual and job seniority rights. 

5.05 MATERNITY-RELATED ABSENCES   

A. The Aleutians East Borough will not discriminate against any employee who requests 
an excused absence for medical disabilities associated with a pregnancy.  Requests for 
time off associated with pregnancy and/or childbirth (apart from medical disabilities 
associated with these conditions) will be considered in the same manner as any other 
request for an unpaid family leave. 

5.06 LIFE-THREATENING ILLNESSES IN THE WORKPLACE   

A. Employees with life-threatening illnesses, such as cancer, heart disease and AIDS, often 
wish to continue their normal pursuits, including work, to the extent allowed by their 
conditions.  The Borough supports these endeavors as long as such employees are able 
to meet acceptable performance standards.  As in the case of other disabilities, the 
Borough will make reasonable efforts to accommodate such employees, according to 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 24 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

all legal requirements, to allow qualified employees with life-threatening illnesses to 

perform the essential functions of their jobs. 

B. Medical information concerning individual employees shall be confidential.  The Borough 
shall take reasonable precautions to protect such information from inappropriate 
disclosure.  Managers and other employees shall respect and maintain the 
confidentiality of employee medical information.  Anyone inappropriately disclosing such 
information is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. 

C. Employees with questions or concerns about life-threatening illnesses are encouraged 
to contact the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee for information and referral 

to appropriate services and resources.  

5.07 SICK LEAVE   

A. The Aleutians East Borough provides paid sick leave benefits to all eligible employees 
for periods of temporary absence due to illnesses, disability, or injuries.  Eligible 
employee classifications are: regular full-time employees and regular part-time 

employees. 

B. Eligible employees will accrue sick leave benefits at the rate of 12 days per year (1 day 
for every full month of service).  Sick leave benefits are calculated on the basis of a 
“benefit year”, which is the 12 month period that begins when the employee starts to 

earn sick leave benefits. 

C. Paid sick leave can be used in minimum increments of one-half day.  Eligible employees 
may use sick leave benefits for an absence due to their own illness or injury or that of 
a family member who resides in the employee’s household.  Paid sick leave benefits 
may be extended to other situations when prior written approval is obtained from the 

Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

D. Employees who are unable to report to work due to illness or injury shall notify their 
direct supervisor before the scheduled start of their workday if possible.  Absent other 
arrangements, the employee shall notify the direct supervisor before work is scheduled 

to begin, on each additional day of absence. 

E. Sick leave benefits will be calculated based on the employee’s base pay rate at the time 
of absence and will not include any special forms of compensation, such as overtime, 
incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials. 

F. As an additional condition of eligibility for sick leave benefits, an employee on an 
extended absence must apply for any other available compensation and benefits, such 
as Workers’ Compensation.  Employees will be given the opportunity to apply for family 
leave and/or FMLA protection.  Sick leave benefits will be used to supplement any 
payments that an employee is eligible to receive from state disability insurance, 
Workers’ Compensation or any Borough- provided disability insurance program(s).  The 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 25 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

combination of any such disability payments and sick leave benefits shall not exceed 

the employee’s normal earnings for any given week or any given day. 

G. Unused paid sick leave benefits shall accumulate indefinitely.  Employees with more 
than twenty (20) days of accrued sick leave may contribute as many days as they wish 
above the twenty (20) days to the Borough’s sick leave bank.  Donations may be made 
on July 1st of every year.  Employees who have exhausted all paid leave as a result of 
sickness or injury, may apply in writing to the Sick Leave Bank.  The Mayor, Borough 
Administrator, or designee will review all Sick Leave Bank requests and make a 
determination of the number of days to be granted to each applying employee, from 
the Sick Leave Bank.  If the Sick Leave Bank becomes exhausted, the Administration 
may call for additional donations of sick leave. 

H. Paid sick leave benefits are intended solely to provide income protection if there is 
illness or injury, and may not be used for any other absence18.  Unused sick leave 

benefits shall be forfeited upon termination of Borough employment19. 

I. Whenever an employee takes sick leave, a Request for Sick Leave form20 shall be 
completed by the employee and submitted by the employee to the employee’s 
supervisor (with a copy to the Finance Director).  The Borough anticipates that in most 
circumstances, the form will be completed after the employee returns to work following 
the period of sick leave.  However, there may be circumstances where it is more 
appropriate for the employee to submit the form either before the sick leave (for 
instance, when leave is taken for surgery) or during the period of sick leave.  The 

following definitions, rules and procedures shall apply: 

1. Applicability.  This policy applies to all employees of the Aleutians East Borough 

who are eligible for sick leave benefits.  

2. Definition:  Sick leave is paid time off (with appropriate benefits) which may be 
used for an absence from work either due to the employee’s own illness or injury, 
or the illness or injury of a family member who resides in the employee’s 
household. Sick leave is time for which an AEB employee will be paid and receive 
the benefits customarily due to that employee, even though the employee does 

not engage in any Borough work during the period in which the sick leave is taken.   

                                                 
 

18  All qualified employees may make donations to the Sick Leave Bank, as described in 5.07 G of this handbook.  

Note the provision that, “Donations may be made on July 1st of every year.”   With the prior written permission 
of the Borough Mayor or designee, donations may be made at any time of year. 

 
19  When a donation of sick leave has been made per 5.07 G, that sick leave is deemed “used” at the time the 

donation is made.  Therefore, sick leave which has previously been donated is not subject to forfeiture upon 
termination. 

 

20  A copy of the Request for Sick Leave form is appended to this handbook.  Questions about use of the form or 
the application of this paragraph should be addressed to the employee’s Supervisor.  

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 26 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

J. How to monitor. 

1. It is the employee’s responsibility to request sick leave timely, and the supervisor’s 

responsibility to monitor sick leave for all employees supervised. 

2. All requests for sick leave must be submitted during the pay period in which the 
sick leave is requested.  

K. Who will monitor. 

1. The supervisor will be the first line of monitoring requests for sick leave. 

2. In all cases where sick leave is requested and approved, the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee may also track and monitor sick leave. 

L. Must be logged and turned in each pay period. 

1. During each pay period, every non-exempt Borough employee shall submit to the 

Borough Finance Director an accurate record of: 

a. All sick leave requested; 

b. All sick leave approved (note:  in order to be “sick leave approved,” the 
employee must document appropriate approval by the employee’s 

supervisor); and 

c. All sick leave not approved or disallowed (i.e., sick leave requested but not 
granted, which the employee must take as leave without pay [LWOP] during 

the current pay period). 

d. Absent approval for sick leave from the employee’s immediate supervisor, the 

Borough is not required to grant paid sick leave. 

M. Prior permission of supervisor required. 

1. The only exception to this requirement is in the case of a bona-fide emergency; 

and 

2. Determination of whether a given situation is an emergency shall be made by the 
supervisor, unless the supervisor defers the decision to the Mayor, Borough 

Administrator or designee. 

N. When sick leave may be taken. 

O. It is the responsibility of the employee to request sick leave. 

1. Sick leave must be requested in the pay period in which the requested sick leave 

was taken. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 27 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

2. In exigent circumstances, the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee may, at 
his sole discretion, approve sick leave after the pay period in which the requested 
sick leave was taken.  

a. Absent written approval from the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee, 

sick leave may not be taken back-to-back with other leave or paid time off.  

3. The employee wishing to take sick leave back-to-back with any other types of 
leave or paid time off discussed above shall bear the burden of proving to the 
satisfaction of the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee, that exigent 
circumstances which justify the exception to the general rule do, in fact, exist. 

a. The decision of the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee shall be final. 

b. If the employee has submitted a written request to take sick leave back-to-
back with other leave or paid time off as an exception to the above, the 
Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee shall provide a written response 
to the employee’s request. 

5.08 TIME OFF TO VOTE   

A. The Aleutians East Borough encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities 
by participating in elections.  Generally, employees are able to find time to vote either 
before or after their regular work schedule.  If employees are unable to vote in an 
election during their non-working hours, the Borough will grant up to two (2) hours of 
paid time to vote, for each election. 

B. Employees should request time off to vote from their supervisor at least two (2) working 
days before each election day.  Advance notice is required so that the necessary time 
off can be scheduled at the beginning or end of the work shift, whichever (in the AEB’s 

sole discretion) provides the least disruption to the normal work schedule. 

5.09 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE    

A. If an employee wishes to take time off due to the death of an immediate family member, 
the employee should notify his or her supervisor immediately. 

B. Up to five (5) days of paid bereavement leave will be provided to eligible employees 

(regular full-time and regular part-time employees). 

C. Bereavement pay is calculated based on the base pay rate at the time of absence and 
will not include any special forms of compensation, such as overtime, incentives, 
commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials. 

D. Approval of bereavement leave is contingent upon the employee’s absence not causing 
unusual operating problems.  Any employee may, with the supervisor’s prior written 
approval, use any available paid leave (vacation or sick leave) for additional time off as 

necessary. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 28 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

E. The Borough defines “immediate family” as the individual’s spouse or significant other, 
parent, step-parent, child, step-child, adopted child, sibling or step-sibling; or the 
spouse’s or significant other’s parent, step-parent, child, step-child, adopted child, 
sibling or step-sibling; or any person other than those previously listed who is currently 
living in the same household with the individual or is legally dependent upon the 

individual21. 

5.10 LEAVE WITHOUT PAY (LWOP)   

A. The Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee may grant leave without pay (LWOP) to 
any permanent employee of the Aleutians East Borough (AEB). 

B. In order to be considered valid, a request for LWOP must be: 

1. Made on the official Borough LWOP Request Form22;  

2. The LWOP Request Form shall be completed, signed and dated by the Borough 

employee requesting the LWOP; and 

3. Whenever feasible, the LWOP Request Form shall be submitted to the Mayor, 
Borough Administrator or designee a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the date 

when the requested LWOP will begin23. 

C. A request for LWOP shall be considered in conjunction with the circumstances involved 
and the interests of the AEB, which shall include but need not be limited to: 

1. Representations made and documented at the time the employee was initially 

hired; 

2. Anticipated work load requirements; 

3. Staffing considerations during the period of the LWOP requested; 

4. The duration of the proposed period of LWOP; and 

5. Other factors which the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee may deem 

relevant at the time the request for LWOP is being considered24. 

                                                 
21  A ward is legally dependent upon his or her guardian; a person listed as a dependent on an income tax return 

is a legal dependent of the individual(s) filing the return. 

 

22  This form is available at the end of this handbook. 
 

23  It is understood that there may be circumstances in which it is not feasible to request LWOP thirty (30) days 
prior to the date the requested leave would begin.  The Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee shall have 

the discretion to consider such requests, and approve or deny such, on a case-by-case basis. 
 

24  Other factors may include consistency with existing AEB policy, including Section 105 (Conflicts of Interest), 

Section 106 (Outside Employment), Section 502 (Work Schedules), etc., and further considerations which the 
administrator processing the request deems relevant. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 29 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

D. LWOP shall only be granted to an employee after that employee has utilized all available 

annual leave. 

E. The general rule is that an employee on LWOP shall not accrue benefits, including 
medical insurance, PERS retirement, sick leave or vacation leave.  The administrator 
signing the LWOP request form shall have the discretion to make exceptions from this 

general policy.  If such exceptions are made: 

1. The exception shall be documented in writing on the same document which grants 

the LWOP. 

2. The exception shall be explicit as to which type(s) of benefit(s) are being granted 
during the period of the LWOP, with all benefits not explicitly listed being deemed 

denied; and 

3. If the LWOP form is not signed and dated by an appropriate AEB administrator, 
the exception shall be deemed not granted, and the general rule (no benefits 
accrue during a period of LWOP) shall apply. 

F. LWOP shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) work days every two (2) years.  
Exceptions may be granted, in writing, by the Mayor, Borough Administrator or 

designee. 

G. LWOP may include, but need not be limited to, family leave, maternity leave, education 

leave or leave for other personal obligations. 

1. When a period of LWOP ends, the AEB will make reasonable efforts to return the 
employee to the same position or a similar available position.  However, the AEB 

cannot, and does not, guarantee reinstatement in all cases.   

5.11 COMPENSATORY TIME (COMP TIME).   

A. Effective immediately, a Request for Comp Time form25 must be completed by the 
employee, submitted by the employee to the employee’s supervisor, and signed by the 
supervisor, before the employee engages in any work for which the employee expects 
comp time. The following definitions, rules and procedures shall apply: 

1. Applicability.  This policy applies to all non-exempt employees26 of the Aleutians 

East Borough, in situations where they may: 

                                                 
25  A copy of the Request for Comp Time form is appended to this handbook.  Questions about use of the form or 

the application of this Comp Time Policy should be addressed to the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

 
26  Every AEB employee should be categorized as either “exempt” or “non-exempt” in the applicable job 

description.  Note that according to Section 201 of the Employee Handbook, exempt employees “are excluded 
from specific provisions of federal wage and hour laws.”  Among other things, exempt employees are not 

eligible to be paid overtime or to accrue compensatory time (comp time).  Any AEB employee requiring 

clarification of this matter should ask the employee’s immediate supervisor or the Mayor, Borough Administrator 
or designee. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 30 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

a. Work in excess of eight (8) hours per day; or 

b. Work in excess of forty (40) hours per week.  

2. Definition:  Comp time is time for which an AEB employee will be paid and receive 
the benefits customarily due to that employee, even though the employee does 
not engage in any Borough work during the period in which the comp time is taken.   

a. Comp time is a special type of overtime.  That is why it is addressed in Section 
506 (Overtime) of the Employee Handbook.  [See especially the third 

paragraph of Section 506.] 

b. In other words, comp time is one form of paid time off. 

3. How overtime is normally paid. 

a. Generally, an employee who works overtime27 shall turn in that time as 
overtime and shall be paid for overtime as required by federal and state 
statutes and regulations28. 

b. The possibility of taking comp time may be an option29. 

c. Note that absent a prior written agreement, all overtime must be turned in 
at the end of the pay period in which it was earned, and the Borough must 

pay for that overtime at the appropriate rate (normally time-and-one-half). 

4. How to monitor. 

a. It is the employee’s responsibility to request timely, and the supervisor’s 

responsibility to monitor, both overtime and comp time. 

b. All requests for comp time or overtime must be submitted during the pay 
period in which the extra time was worked. 

                                                 
27  The first paragraph of Section 506 (Overtime) of the Employee Handbook requires that “All overtime work must 

receive the supervisor’s prior authorization.”  [Emphasis added.]  This requirement has been in place at least 
since July 1, 1994.  This means that no after-the-fact claims for overtime can be allowed.  Allowing such claims 

would violate the Borough Code.  That is doubly true for any claims of overtime (or comp time, which is a 
special type of overtime) which were not timely submitted during the pay period in which the extra time was 

worked. 
 
28  Note:  As required by Section 506 (Overtime) of the Employee Handbook, “. . . overtime pay is based on actual 

hours worked.  Time off on sick leave, vacation leave, or any leave of absence will not be considered hours 

worked for purposes of performing overtime calculations.” 
 

29  Section 506 (Overtime) of the Employee Handbook provides that, “Where there is a prior written agreement 
between a NONEXEMPT employee as defined in Section 201 and the Borough, the employee may receive 

compensatory time off in lieu of paid overtime.”  [Emphasis added.] 
 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 31 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

c. Note that both comp time and overtime are normally computed at time-and-

one-half of the normal hourly rate. 

5. Who will monitor. 

a. The supervisor will be the first line of monitoring requests for comp time and 
overtime. 

b. In all cases where comp time is requested and approved, the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee will also track and monitor comp time. 

6. Must be logged and turned in each pay period. 

a. During each pay period, every non-exempt Borough employee shall submit 

to the Borough Finance Director an accurate record of: 

i. All overtime worked; 

ii. All comp time earned (note:  in order to be “comp time earned,” the 

employee must document prior approval by the employee’s supervisor); and 

iii. All comp time taken (i.e., comp time earned during prior pay periods, which 

the employee has taken as paid time off during the current pay period). 

7. Absent prior written approval for comp time from the employee’s immediate 
supervisor, the Borough is required to pay overtime. 

a. Prior permission of supervisor required. 

b. The only exception to this requirement is in the case of a bona-fide 

emergency; and 

c. Determination of whether a given situation is an emergency shall be made 
by the supervisor, unless the supervisor defers the decision to the Mayor, 
Borough Administrator or designee. 

8. How comp time is computed. 

a. Comp time is normally computed at one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the 
overtime worked; 

b. For example, a non-exempt AEB employee who has worked 50 hours during a 
40-hour work week (and who has the appropriately signed-off prior written 
permission in place) will have earned (1.5) x (10 hours) = 15 hours of comp 
time.  [Note that absent the prior written permission, the Borough is required 
to pay that individual time-and-a-half for those 10 hours, which amounts to 15 

hours of pay for the 10 hours of additional work.] 

i. When comp time may be taken. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 32 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

c. It is the responsibility of the employee to request comp time30 and, when 

approved, take it, in a timely fashion. 

d. Comp time must be taken within three (3) pay periods after the comp time is 
earned. 

e. In exigent circumstances31, the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee 
may, at his sole discretion, approve taking comp time beyond the third (3rd) 

pay period after the comp time was earned. 

f. Under no circumstances may comp time be taken beyond ninety (90) days 

after the comp time was earned.   

g. Comp time which is not timely taken shall be forfeited.  [Note:  when comp 
time is forfeited, federal wage and hour laws require that the Borough pay 

the employee for that forfeited comp time at the appropriate overtime rate.] 

9. Comp time may not be taken back-to-back with other leave or paid time off. 

a. Except in exigent circumstances, comp time may not be taken back-to-back 

with: 

i. Vacation time off (annual leave) 

ii. Sick leave; 

iii. Leave taken under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA);  

iv. Bereavement leave; 

v. Time off to vote; 

vi. Jury duty; 

vii. Military leave; or 

viii. Witness duty. 

10. The employee wishing to take comp time back-to-back with any of the types of 
leave or paid time off discussed above shall bear the burden of proving to the 
satisfaction of the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee, that exigent 
circumstances which justify the exception to the general rule do, in fact, exist. 

                                                 
30  Comp time may be taken only at a time approved in advance by the employee’s supervisor.  No 

supervisor shall unreasonably withhold permission for an employee to take comp time. 
 

31  The employee requesting the extension of the time period during which comp time may be taken shall bear 
the burden of proving to the satisfaction of the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee, that exigent 

circumstances do, in fact, exist in the situation for which the extension is being requested. 
 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 33 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

a. The decision of the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee shall be final. 

b. If the employee has submitted a written request to take comp time back-to-
back with other leave or paid time off as an exception to the above, the 
Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee shall provide a written response 

to the employee’s request.  

EMPLOYEE CONDUCT 

6.01 EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND WORK RULES   

A. To assure orderly operations and provide the best possible work environment, the 
Aleutians East Borough expects employees to follow rules of conduct that will protect 
the interests and safety of all Borough employees and the organization. 

B. It is not possible to list all the forms of behavior that are unacceptable in the workplace.  
The following are examples of infractions of rules of conduct that may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment32: 

1. Violation of any federal, state or local law (other than minor traffic offenses); 

2. Theft or inappropriate removal, possession or private use of Borough property; 

3. Falsification of timekeeping records; 

4. Working under the influence of alcohol or non-prescribed drugs33; 

5. Possession, distribution, sale, transfer, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs in the 
workplace, while on duty, or while operating Borough-owned vehicles or 
equipment; 

6. Fighting in the workplace; 

7. Threatening violence in the workplace; 

8. Boisterous or disruptive activity in the workplace; 

9. Negligence or improper conduct leading to injury of the employee, injury of others, 

damage of Borough-owned property or damage to other property; 

10. Other disrespectful conduct; 

11. Slander or libel of a Borough official; 

                                                 
32  Note:  this is not intended to be an exhaustive list. 
 

33  This includes working under the influence of prescribed drugs if the prescribing medical professional, or the 
label on the prescription container, indicates the drug should not be used in certain situations and the employee 

is taking the drug while working under any of those proscribed situations. 
 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 34 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

12. Violation of safety or health rules; 

13. Smoking in prohibited areas34; 

14. Sexual or other unlawful harassment; 

15. Possession of dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as explosives or firearms, 

in the workplace; 

16. Substantial absenteeism or excessive tardiness; 

17. Any absence without appropriate notice to the supervisor; 

18. Unauthorized absence from the employee’s assigned work station during the 

workday; 

19. Unauthorized use of telephones, facsimile machines, mail system, computers, copy 
machines or other Borough-owned or equipment leased by the Borough; 

20. Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information; 

21. Violation of personnel policies; 

22. Unsatisfactory performance; or 

23. Conduct unbecoming a Borough employee or inclined to give others an 
unfavorable opinion regarding the Borough, whether such conduct occurs on or 

off the clock. 

6.02 DRUG AND ALCOHOL USE    

A. The Borough intends to provide a drug-free, healthy, and safe workplace.  To promote 
this goal, employees are required to report to work in appropriate mental and physical 
condition to perform their jobs satisfactorily35.  [See also Section 6.03, Drug and alcohol 

Testing.] 

B. While on Borough premises and while conducting business-related activities off Borough 
premises, no employee may use, consume, possess, distribute, sell or be under the 
influence of alcohol or marijuana or engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensation, possession, or use or be under the influence of, illegal drugs.  Violations 
of this policy may, at the Borough’s sole discretion36, lead to disciplinary action, up to 

                                                 
34  Note:  Smoking is prohibited on all Borough property and in all Borough vehicles. 

 
35  See, among other things, United States Department of Commerce Form CD-511, “Certifications Regarding 

Debarment, Suspension and other Responsibility Matters; Drug-Free Workplace Requirements and Lobbying.”  

This is a form which the AEB frequently must sign when obtaining federal grants.  The AEB intends to comply 
fully with the Drug-Free Workplace Requirements articulated in that form.   

 
36  This decision normally will be made by the Mayor or Borough Administrator. In unusual circumstances, the 

decision may be made by another individual (a designee). 
 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 35 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

and including immediate termination of employment, and/or required participation in a 
substance abuse rehabilitation or treatment program.  Such violations may also have 
other legal consequences. 

C. The use of drugs properly prescribed for a Borough employee is permitted on the job 
only if the use of such drugs does not impair the employee’s ability to perform the 

essential functions of the job effectively and in a safe manner. 

D. To inform employees about important provisions of the policy, the Borough has 
established a drug-free awareness program.  The program provides information on the 
dangers and effects of substance abuse in the workplace, resources available to 
employees, and consequences for violations of this policy.  For more information, 

employees should make inquiries to the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

E. Employees with questions or concerns about substance dependence or abuse are 
encouraged to discuss these matters with their supervisor or with the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee, to receive assistance or referrals to appropriate resources in 

the community. 

F. Employees with drug or alcohol problems that have not resulted in, or been the subject 
of, disciplinary action, may request approval to take time off to participate in a 
rehabilitation or treatment program through the Aleutians East Borough’s health 
insurance benefit coverage, if available (and if the employee is eligible for coverage).  
Leave may be granted if the employee agrees to abstain from use of the problem 
substance; abides by all Borough policies, rules, and prohibitions relating to conduct in 

the workplace; and if granting the leave will not cause the Borough undue hardship. 

G. Under the Drug-Free Workplace Act, an employee who performs work for a government 
contract or grant must notify the Borough of a criminal conviction for drug-related 
activity occurring in the workplace.  Reports of convictions and of charges relating to 
illegal drug use or possession, marijuana-involved or alcohol-involved offenses 
(including but not limited to DUIs) must be made in writing to the Mayor, Borough 

Administrator or designee within five (5) days of the conviction. 

H. Employees with questions on the policy or issues related to drug or alcohol use in the 
workplace should raise their concerns with their supervisor or with the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee.  There shall be no adverse action taken against any Borough 

employee because of questions raised under this section. 

6.03 DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING [See also Section 10.01C, regarding the 

benefits available for drug and alcohol rehabilitation.]   

A. Maintaining safe work environment.   The Aleutians East Borough is committed to 
providing a safe, healthy, efficient, and productive work environment for all employees.  
In keeping with this commitment, the following categories of employees may37 be asked 

                                                 
37  Whether a particular employee is required to provide such a sample is a matter within the sole discretion of 

the Borough.  Any Borough employee who is appropriately directed by the Borough Mayor, the Borough 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 36 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

to provide body substance samples (e.g., breath, blood and/or urine) to screen for the 

illicit use of drugs: 

1. Employees holding positions which the Borough, in its sole discretion, deems safety 
sensitive; 

2. Applicants for positions which the Borough deems safety sensitive; 

3. Employees holding positions for which drug testing is required by law (for example, 
hovercraft crew members); and 

4. Applicants for positions for which drug testing is required by law. 

B. When drug or alcohol testing may be required.   Borough employees and applicants for 
Borough employment may be required to participate in drug and alcohol testing under 
several circumstances (please see enumerated situations below).  The Borough shall 
make reasonable efforts to protect the confidentiality of all drug test results.  Drug tests 

may be required in any of the following situations: 

1. Pre-employment.   Before a job applicant for a drug-testing-designated position 
(see 6.03 a. above) receives an offer of employment from the Borough, the 

applicant must pass a drug screening.   

2. Accident when on duty.   If the Borough employee is involved in an accident38 
while on duty, the employee shall be relieved of duty as quickly as is consistent 
with the interests of safety and shall be escorted39 to a facility where a drug test 

shall be administered. 

a. As a condition of continued Borough employment, the employee shall submit 
to such testing and provide the sample(s) requested. 

b. The Borough shall bear all costs related to the drug/alcohol testing. 

                                                 
Administrator or designee, to provide a sample for drug or alcohol testing and who refuses to do so, shall be 
subject to Borough discipline, which may include immediate termination of Borough employment. 

 
38  For employees required by DOT or Coast Guard regulations to be subject to drug and alcohol testing, this 

includes motor vehicle accidents of all types, even when driving their personal vehicle.  For other Borough 

employees, this requirement applies when that employee is involved in an on-the-job accident or incident which 
a reasonable person might conclude involved either drugs or alcohol, either as a cause or as a contributing 

factor.  When in doubt, the employee or the employee’s supervisor should immediately speak with the Mayor, 
Borough Administrator or designee to obtain clarification. 

 
39  The escort requirement is for two purposes:  the employee’s protection, and to ensure that there can be no 

credible, after-the-fact, allegations that the results of the test were affected by anything the employee did while 

on the way to the testing facility.  When possible, the escort should be the employee’s supervisor.  If the 
supervisor is not available within a reasonable period of time, another Borough employee or a law enforcement 

officer may serve as the escort. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 37 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

c. The testing agency shall be informed that results of the drug/alcohol testing 
shall be provided directly to the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee 
as expeditiously as possible.   

d. The employee may request a copy of the results. 

3. Exhibited behavior.   Drug or alcohol testing shall be required if the employee 
exhibits signs or symptoms of alcohol or drug use as determined by the Mayor, 
Borough Administrator or designee, based either upon first-hand observations or 

reported, reliable observations. 

4. Reasonable suspicion.   If the Borough Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee 
has a reasonable suspicion that a Borough Employee is engaged in the illicit or 
inappropriate use of alcohol or drugs, any one of them may reduce that suspicion 

to writing and then require that the Borough employee take a drug test. 

5. As part of a well-described employee group.  The Borough Mayor or Borough 
Administrator, or designee, may at any time designate a group of Borough 
employees to be subject to tests for drugs and/or alcohol.  The group shall consist 
of no fewer than three (3) employees and shall be clearly described.   Note:  
every full-time, permanent Borough employee who accepts a Borough 
paycheck is subject to this policy. 

6. As provided in Section 10.01 of this Employee Handbook, one of the employee 
benefits available is a drug and alcohol rehabilitation program.  An employee who 
fails a drug or alcohol test may40 be continued as a Borough employee, contingent 
upon: 

a. Completion of a comprehensive drug and alcohol screening and evaluation 

completed by an appropriately certified medical professional; and 

b. Successful completion of the drug or alcohol rehabilitation program 
recommended by the certified medical professional who signed the 

comprehensive drug and alcohol screening and evaluation; and 

c. Successfully passing all subsequent drug and alcohol testing which may be 
recommended by the certified medical professional or by responsible officials 
of the drug or alcohol rehabilitation program, or required by the Mayor, 

Borough Administrator or designee.  

                                                 
40  First, every Borough employee should be aware that in such circumstances, continued Borough employment is 

conditioned upon successfully complying with: a)  drug and alcohol screening and evaluation;  b) all 
requirements for completion of any recommended drug or alcohol treatment program; and c) drug and alcohol 

testing required after completion of the treatment program.  Second, there may be circumstances (for example, 
intentional assault committed while under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs) in which the Borough will 

deem it inappropriate for the employee to continue as a Borough employee, regardless of the employee’s 

success in screening, evaluation, treatment and/or subsequent testing.  In such matters, the Borough’s written 
decision shall be final. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 38 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

6.04 SMOKING   

A. In keeping with the Aleutians East Borough’s intent to provide a safe and healthful work 
environment, smoking of tobacco and marijuana products, including vaporizers (e-
cigarettes), for marijuana, tobacco or herbal preparations is prohibited throughout the 
workplace41. This policy applies equally to all Borough employees, to all elected officials 

and to all members of the public. 

6.05 SAFETY   

A. To provide a safe and healthful work environment for Borough employees and visitors, 
the Borough has established a workplace safety program.  This program is a top priority 
for the Borough.  Department heads shall implement, administer, monitor, and evaluate 
the safety program.  The safety program’s success depends on the alertness and 

personal commitment of all. 

B. The Borough provides information to employees about workplace safety and health 
issues through regular internal communication channels such as supervisor-employee 

meetings, bulletin board postings, memos, and other written communications. 

C. Every Borough employee shall obey all safety rules and exercise caution in all work 
activities42.  Employees must immediately report any unsafe condition to the appropriate 
supervisor.  No adverse action shall be taken against a Borough employee for reporting 
an unsafe condition. Employees who violate safety standards, cause hazardous or 
dangerous situations, or who fail to report or, where appropriate, remedy such 
dangerous situations, may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. 

D. In the case of accidents that result in injury, regardless of how significant or insignificant 
the injury may appear, employees shall immediately notify the Mayor, Borough 
Administrator or designee43.  Such reports are necessary to comply with insurance and 

Workers’ Compensation statutes, policies and procedures. 

6.06 USE OF EQUIPMENT   

A. Equipment is essential in accomplishing job duties, is often expensive and may be 
difficult to replace.  When using Borough property, all Borough employees shall exercise 
due care, perform required maintenance, and follow all applicable operating 

instructions, safety standards, and guidelines. 

                                                 
41  This includes all Borough-owned and Borough-leased property, and applies to all Borough-owned and Borough-

leased vehicles. 
 

42  The AEB prefers that all Borough employees be self-policing, practice good housekeeping, self-correct 
dangerous situations (for example, removing barriers to quick access to fire extinguishers), etc. 

 

43  Such notification shall be in writing and shall provide the information required by AEB policy.  Except when not 
practicable, such notification shall be made on an AEB-approved form and shall be made within twenty-four 

(24) hours of the injury. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 39 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

B. Please notify the supervisor if any equipment, machines, or tools appear to be damaged, 
defective, or in need of repair.  Prompt reporting of damages, defects, and the need for 
repairs could prevent deterioration of equipment and possible injury to Borough 
employees or others.  The supervisor can answer any questions about an employee’s 

responsibility for maintenance and care of equipment used on the job. 

C. The improper, careless, negligent, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment 

can result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

6.07 USE OF TELEPHONES   

A. Employees are required to reimburse the Borough for any charges resulting from their 
personal use of the Borough’s telephone, facsimile, postage or other machines. 

B. To assure effective telephone communications, employees should always identify 
themselves by name, use an approved greeting and speak in a courteous and 
professional manner.  Please confirm information received from the caller, and hang up 
only after the caller has done so. 

6.08 REST PERIODS   

A. During each eight (8)-hour work day, full-time non-exempt employees are provided 
with two rest periods.  Supervisors will advise employees of the regular rest period 
length and schedule.  To the extent possible, rest periods will be provided in the middle 
of work periods.  Since this time is counted and paid as time worked, employees shall 
not be absent from their work stations beyond the allotted rest period time.  Violation 
of the requirement that employees not abuse either the duration or frequency of rest 

periods may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

6.09 PERSONAL APPEARANCE   

A. Dress, grooming, and personal cleanliness contribute to the morale of all employees 
and affect the image that the Borough presents to the public.  During business hours, 
employees are expected to present a clean and neat appearance and to dress according 
to the requirements of their positions.  Consult your supervisor if you have questions 

about what constitutes appropriate attire. 

6.10 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT   

A. An employee may hold a job with another organization as long as he or she satisfactorily 
performs his or her job responsibilities with the Borough.  Employees should consider 
the impact that outside employment may have on their health and physical endurance.  
All employees will be judged by the same performance standards and will be subject to 
the Borough’s scheduling demands, regardless of any existing outside work 
requirements. 

B. If the Borough determines that an employee’s outside work interferes with that Borough 
employee’s performance or ability to meet the requirements of the Borough as they are 
modified from time to time, the employee may be asked to terminate the outside 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 40 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

employment if he or she wishes to remain employed by the  Borough.  Outside 
employment which has an actual or potential adverse impact on the Aleutians East 
Borough may be deemed to be a conflict of interest. 

6.11 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  [See also Section 1.04, Definition of Nepotism]   

A. An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when an individual is in a position to 
influence a decision that may result in a personal or financial gain for that individual or 
for a family member as a result of the Borough’s business dealings.  [See definition of 

“family” in Section 1.04I of this handbook.] 

B. Every Borough employee has an obligation to conduct Borough business within 
guidelines that prohibit actual or potential conflicts of interest.  This policy establishes 
only the framework within which the Borough can reasonably be expected to accomplish 
the public’s business.  The purpose of these guidelines is to provide general direction.  
If any employee requires further clarification regarding issues related to the subject of 
acceptable standards of conduct, that employee should inquire of the Mayor, Borough 

Administrator or designee. 

C. No “presumption of guilt” is created by the mere existence of a relationship with private 
firms.  However, if an employee has any influence on transactions involving purchases, 
contracts, or leases, it is imperative that he or she fully disclose44 the nature of such 
influence to an administrative superior in the Borough as soon as possible, so that 

safeguards can be established to protect the Borough and all other affected parties. 

D. Personal gain may result not only in cases where an employee or relative has significant 
ownership in a private firm with which the Borough does business, but also when an 
employee or relative receives any profit, commission, kickback, bribe, substantial gift 
[i.e., one having a value in excess of one hundred dollars ($100.00)], or special 
consideration as a result of, or in the anticipation or hope of, any transaction or business 
dealings involving the Borough. 

E. In addition to the foregoing policy and framework, State law [AS 29.20.010 (a)(4)] 
prohibits a municipal employee from participating in any official action in which the 
employee has a substantial financial interest.  Employees are considered to have a 
substantial financial interest in matters affecting their immediate families.  [See 

definition of “immediate family” in Section 1.04M of this handbook.] 

6.12 SECURITY INSPECTIONS   

A. The Borough wishes to maintain a work environment that is free of illegal drugs, alcohol, 
marijuana, firearms, explosives, and other improper materials.  To achieve this goal, 
the Borough prohibits the possession, transfer, sale, or use of such substances and 
materials on its premises.  The Borough requires the personal cooperation of all 

employees in administering this policy. 

                                                 
44  All such disclosures shall be in writing. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 41 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

B. Desks, lockers, and other storage devices provided by the Borough are for the 
convenience of employees but remain the sole property of the Borough.  Such storage 
devices and any articles found within them, can be inspected by an agent or 
representative of the Borough at any time, either with or without prior notice45 and 
without regard to whether such storage devices are locked. All Borough employees must 
make arrangements for off-site46 storage of personal materials or items which they 
expect to be protected from such inspections.  

6.13 SOLICITATION   

A. To ensure a productive and harmonious work environment, persons not employed by 
the Borough may not solicit or distribute literature in the workplace at any time for any 

purpose. 

B. The Borough recognizes that employees may have interests in events and organizations 
outside the workplace.  However, employees may not solicit or distribute literature 
concerning these activities during working time.  (Working time does not include lunch 

periods, work breaks, or any other periods when Borough employees are not on duty.) 

C. The posting of written solicitations on Borough bulletin boards is restricted.  These 
bulletin boards display important information, and employees should consult them 
frequently for information regarding Workers’ Compensation, Alaska State disability 
insurance, unemployment insurance and notices of other rights and obligations of 

employees. 

6.14 SEXUAL AND OTHER UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT   

A. The Aleutians East Borough is committed to providing a work environment that is free 
of discrimination and unlawful harassment.  Actions, words, jokes or comments based 
on an individual’s sex, race, age, religion, or any other legally protected characteristic(s) 
will not be tolerated.  As a non-inclusive example, sexual harassment (both overt and 
subtle) is a form of employee misconduct that is demeaning to another person, 
undermines the integrity of the employment relationship, and is strictly prohibited. 

B. Any employee who wants to report an incident of sexual or other unlawful harassment 
should promptly report this matter to his or her supervisor.  If the supervisor is 
unavailable or the employee believes it would be inappropriate to contact that person, 
the employee should immediately contact the Mayor, Borough Administrator or 
designee.  The Borough shall not take any adverse action against a Borough employee 

who asks questions, raises concerns or make reports under this section. 

                                                 
45  Such inspections may be made with or without a search warrant.  Note:  no search warrant is required for such 

inspections. 

 
46  As used here, “off-site” means not on real property owned or leased by the AEB and not in any vehicle or 

container owned or leased by the AEB. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 42 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

C. Any supervisor or manager who becomes aware of possible sexual or other unlawful 
harassment should promptly advise the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee, who 
will handle the matter in a timely and confidential manner. 

D. Any Borough employee who engages in sexual or unlawful harassment shall be subject 

to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

6.15 PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE   

A. The purpose of this policy is to state the Borough’s position on administering equitable 
and consistent discipline for unsatisfactory conduct in the workplace.  The best 
disciplinary measure is one which is corrective in nature, does not have to be enforced 
and comes from employee self-discipline, good leadership and fair supervision at all 

levels of Borough employment. 

B. The Borough is committed to ensuring fair treatment of all Borough employees and in 
making certain that disciplinary action is to correct the problem, prevent recurrence, 
and prepare the employee for satisfactory service in the future. 

C. See the definitions section of this handbook (Section 1.04) for the meanings of specific 
terms (e.g., the definition of “termination,” which makes it clear that the concept of 
termination includes the possibility of immediate termination in some circumstances).  
Disciplinary action may call for any (or a combination of) these actions: oral warning; 
written warning with or without demotion; suspension with pay; suspension without 
pay; or termination of employment47.  Which disciplinary action is appropriate depends 
on the severity of the problem and the number of prior disciplinary actions and 
occurrences.  When the appropriate Borough official deems it appropriate, one or more 

of the above actions may be bypassed. 

D. Progressive discipline means that, with respect to most disciplinary problems, these 
steps will normally be followed: a first offense may call for an oral warning or a written 
warning; the next offense may be followed by a suspension or a demotion or both; and 
a subsequent offense may require a termination of employment.  Some offenses may 

be so severe as to require immediate termination. 

E. The Borough is very aware that certain types of employee problems are serious enough 
to justify either suspension or termination of employment, without going through all of 
the usual progressive disciplinary steps. 

F. While it is impossible to list every type of behavior that may be deemed a serious 
offense, the EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND WORK RULES policy [See Sections 6.01 through 
6.15, inclusive, of this handbook] includes example of problems that may result in 
immediate suspension or termination of employment.  Not all problems listed are 

                                                 
47  Depending on the severity of the offense, both suspension and termination may be immediate.  Less severe 

offenses may require less immediate discipline. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 43 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

necessarily serious offenses, but each of the listed problems is an example of 

unsatisfactory conduct that may trigger progressive discipline. 

G. By using progressive discipline, the Borough intends that most employee problems will 
be corrected at an early stage, benefiting both the employee and the Borough. 

H. When taking disciplinary action involving demotion, suspension without pay, 
termination, or other action adversely affecting a regular employee’s pay, the supervisor 
must inform the employee in writing of the employee’s right to a hearing.  Each regular, 
non-exempt Borough employee who is subject to demotion, suspension without pay, 
termination or any other action adversely affecting the regular employee’s pay has the 
right to a hearing if the employee makes a written request for a hearing within three 
(3) business days of the date the decision is received by the employee.  If the employee 
makes a written request for a hearing, the supervisor or other person designated by 
the Mayor or Borough Administrator, shall provide the hearing within five (5) working 

days of the date the employee’s written request is received.   

I. At the hearing, the employee shall be given the opportunity to explain or rebut the facts 
or allegations that form the basis for the disciplinary action.  The employee may call 
witnesses on the employee’s behalf and may be assisted or represented by another 
person at the hearing.  At the conclusion of the hearing, the person conducting the 
hearing shall consider all the relevant, reliable evidence and render a written decision 
as quickly as possible.  The employee shall remain in the pre-disciplinary pay status 
until the decision is made, reduced to writing and mailed or hand-delivered to the 

employee.   

J. If the employee is dissatisfied with the decision, the employee may appeal the decision 
to the Borough Administrator.  The Administrator or the Administrator’s designee shall 
hear the appeal at the earliest reasonable time.  The employee may call witnesses on 
the employee’s behalf (each of whom may be cross-examined by the AEB’s 
representative and examined by the Administrator or the Administrator’s designee), 
may be assisted or represented by another person at the hearing, and may cross-
examine all witnesses presented by the AEB.  After the hearing, the officer hearing the 
appeal shall consider the relevant, reliable evidence presented and render a written 
decision, including findings of fact and conclusions of law, within ten (10) working days 
unless the parties stipulate to a different time line.  This decision is the final Borough 
decision and shall be delivered to the employee.  It shall contain a notice to the 
employee of his or her right to appeal the decision to the Superior Court in accordance 
with the applicable rules of court. 

SEPARATION FROM BOROUGH EMPLOYMENT 

7.01 EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION   

A. There can be many reasons for termination of employment. Below are examples of 

some of the most common circumstances under which employment is terminated: 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 44 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

1. RESIGNATION – employment termination initiated by an employee who chooses 
to leave the Borough voluntarily. To be considered eligible for rehire, the Borough 
employee shall provide at least two (2) weeks’ written notice of resignation to the 

Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

2. DISCHARGE – employment termination initiated by the Borough. 

3. LAYOFF – involuntary employment termination initiated by the Borough for non-

disciplinary reasons such as lack of work or lack of funds. 

4. MEDICAL TERMINATION – employment termination initiated by the employee or 
by the Borough when an employee is unable, for health reasons, to continue to 
work. 

5. RETIREMENT – voluntary retirement from active employment status, initiated by 

the employee. 

B. EXIT INTERVIEWS - The Aleutians East Borough will generally schedule exit interviews 
at the time of employment termination.  The exit interview will afford an opportunity to 
discuss such issues as employee benefits, conversion privileges, repayment of 
outstanding debts to the Borough, or return of Borough-owned property. Suggestions, 
complaints, and questions can also be voiced.  Employees will receive their final pay 

according to applicable state law. 

C. BENEFITS UPON TERMINATION - Employee benefits will be affected by employment 
termination in the following manner.  All accrued, vested benefits that are due and 
payable at termination will be paid. Some benefits may be continued at the employee’s 
expense if the employee so chooses.  The employee will be notified in writing of the 
benefits that may be continued and of terms, conditions, and limitations of such 

continuance. 

7.02 RETURN OF PROPERTY    

A. Employees are responsible for all AEB property, materials, or written information 
(including access materials such as keys and pass cards) issued to them or in their 

possession or control.   

B. Employees shall return all such Borough property immediately upon request or upon 
termination of employment, whichever is earlier.  The Borough may take any action it 

deems appropriate to recover or protect its property. 

7.03 SEVERENCE PAY   

A. The Borough generally does not provide severance pay to individuals who have been 
Borough employees.  The Borough never grants severance pay to non-exempt 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 45 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

employees whose employment is terminated.  However, the Borough reserves the right 

to make exceptions to the above policy48 in its sole and absolute discretion. 

RECORDS 

8.01 NON-DISCLOSURE   

A. The protection of confidential information is vital to the interests and the success of the 
Borough.  Such confidential information includes, but is not limited to, the following:  
confidential financial information received from a business, labor relation strategies, and 

medical records of employees or clients. 

B. Employees who are privy to confidential information may be required to sign a non-
disclosure agreement as a condition of employment.  Any employee who improperly 
discloses confidential information will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including possible termination of employment and legal action, even if he or she does 

not actually benefit from the disclosed information. 

8.02 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES   

A. The Borough maintains a personnel file on each employee.  The personnel file includes 
such information as the employee’s job application, resume, reference checks, training 
records, documentation of performance appraisals and salary increases, letters of 

recommendation, disciplinary matters, and other employment records.  

B. Personnel files are the property of the Borough, and access to the information they 
contain is restricted.  Generally, only supervisors and management personnel of the 
Borough who have legitimate reason to review information in a file are allowed to do 

so. 

C. Employees who wish to review their own file should contact the Borough Clerk with 
reasonable advance notice.  Employees may review their own personnel files in the 
Borough offices and in the presence of an individual appointed by the Borough to 
maintain the file.  Information in an employee’s personnel file is confidential except 
such information as would be public information in the personnel file of a state 

employee. [See AS 39.25.080.] 

8.03 EMPLOYMENT REFERENCE CHECKS   

A. It is the policy of the Borough to check the employment references of all applicants to 
ensure that individuals are well qualified and have a strong potential to be productive 

and successful. 

B. We will respond to all reference check inquiries from other employers.  Responses to 
such inquiries will only confirm dates of employment, wage rates, and positions held.  

                                                 
48  One common exception is severance pay as provided for in the individual employment contracts of certain 

exempt Borough employees. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 46 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

No other employment data will be release without a written authorization and released 

signed by the individual who is the subject of the inquiry. 

8.04 PERSONNEL DATA CHANGES   

A. It is the responsibility of each employee to notify the Borough promptly of any changes 
in personnel data.  Personal mailing addresses, telephone numbers, marital status, 
number and names of dependents, individuals to be contacted in the event of an 
emergency, educational accomplishments, and other such status reports should always 

be accurate and current. 

8.05 EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS   

A. The Borough relies upon the accuracy of information contained in the employment 
application, as well as accuracy of other data presented throughout the hiring process 
and employment.  Any misrepresentations, falsifications, or material omissions in any 
of this information or data may result in the Borough’s exclusion of the individual from 
further consideration for employment. If the person has already been hired, such 
misrepresentation may result in termination of employment, either immediately upon 

discovery of the misrepresentation or thereafter. 

PAY AND COMPENSATION 

9.01 PAYDAYS   

A. All employees are paid semimonthly on the 15th and last days of the month.  Each 
paycheck will include earnings for all work performed through the end of the previous 

payroll period. 

B. If a regularly scheduled payday falls on a day off (e.g. weekend or holiday), employees 

will be paid on the first day of work following the regularly scheduled payday. 

C. Employees may have pay directly deposited into their bank accounts if they provide 
advance written authorization to the Borough.  Employees will receive an itemized 
statement of wages and withholding when the Borough makes direct deposits. 

9.02 PAY ADVANCES   

A. In the event of a personal emergency, employees may submit a written request for a 
pay advance to their supervisor or manager, indicating the nature of the emergency 
involved.  The supervisor or manager will evaluate the request and determine whether 
a pay advance will be granted. 

B. If a regular payday falls during an employee’s vacation, the employee’s paycheck will 
be available immediately upon his or her return from vacation (unless the paycheck is 

direct-deposited, in which case the direct deposit will be made on the customary date). 

9.03 ADMINISTRATIVE PAY CORRECTIONS   



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 47 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

A. The Borough takes all reasonable steps to assure that employees receive the correct 
amount of pay in each paycheck and that employees are paid promptly on the scheduled 
payday. 

B. In the unlikely event that there is an error in the amount of pay, the employee should 
promptly bring the discrepancy to the attention of the employee’s supervisor so the 
corrections can be made quickly.  Once underpayments are identified, they will be 

corrected in the next regular paycheck. 

C. Overpayments will also be corrected in the next regular paycheck unless this presents 
a burden to the employee (where there is a substantial amount owed).  In that case, 
the Borough will attempt to arrange a repayment schedule with the employee to 

minimize the inconvenience to all involved. 

9.04 PAY DEDUCTIONS   

A. The law requires that the Borough make certain deductions from every employee’s 
compensation.  Among these are applicable federal, state, and local income taxes.  The 

Borough also must deduct Medicare taxes on each employee’s earnings. 

9.05 ANNUAL EVALUATION49  AND SALARY ADJUSTMENT   

A. Supervisors and employees are strongly encouraged to discuss job performance and 
goals on an informal, day-to-day basis.  Formal performance evaluations are conducted 
at the end of an employee’s probationary period in any new position.  This probationary 
period allows the supervisor and the employee to discuss the job responsibilities, 
standards, and performance requirements of the new position.  Additional formal 
performance reviews are conducted to provide both supervisors and employees the 
opportunity to discuss job tasks, identify and correct weaknesses, encourage and 

recognize strengths, and discuss positive, purposeful approaches for meeting goals. 

B. Cost of living adjustments funded by the Assembly will be given annually to employees 
who exhibit satisfactory performance as determined by evaluation.  Cost of living 
adjustments will be based upon the Consumer Price Index for Anchorage as computed 
for the preceding fiscal year. 

C. Merit-based pay adjustments are awarded by the Borough in an effort to recognize truly 
superior employee performance.  Merit-based pay is pay above the cost of living 
allowance that is given to employees annually for satisfactory performance.  The 
decision to award a merit-based adjustment is dependent upon numerous factors, 
including the information documented by this formal evaluation and performance review 

process. 

                                                 
49  The annual evaluation is a type of performance review.  Other performance reviews may take place at the end 

of an employee’s probationary period, after a disciplinary action or corrective action plan has been completed, 

or at such other time as the AEB deems appropriate and beneficial. 
 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 48 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

D. As a guideline in determining the amount of merit-based compensation, additional 
compensation can be awarded by the Mayor at any level up to and including the amount 
of the cost of living adjustment.  Deviation from this guideline is allowable with the 

approval of the Assembly. 

BENEFITS 

10.01 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS   

A. Eligible employees of the Borough are provided a wide range of benefits.  A number of 
the programs (such as Social Security, Workers’ Compensation, state disability, and 
unemployment insurance) cover all Borough employees in the manner prescribed by 

law. 

B. Benefits eligibility is dependent upon a variety of factors, including employee 
classification.  Each employee’s supervisor can identify the programs for which that 
employee is eligible. Details of many of these programs can be found elsewhere in this 

Employee Handbook. 

C. The following benefit programs are available50 to eligible Borough employees:  

1. Benefit Conversion at Termination 

2. Bereavement Leave 

3. Child Care Assistance 

4. COBRA 

  

                                                 
50  Note that not all benefits are available to all Borough employees.  Each employee should see the detail in this 

Employee Handbook regarding each of the benefits offered, and then consult the supervisor if questions still 
remain. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 49 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

5. Dental Insurance 

6. Drug Rehabilitation Program [Refer to Section 6.03] 

7. Family Leave 

8. Flex-time Scheduling 

9. Life Insurance 

10. Major Medical Insurance 

11. Medical Insurance 

12. Membership Dues 

13. Military Leave 

14. Pay Advances 

15. Pension Plan  

16. Relocation Assistance 

17. Tax-Sheltered Annuities 

18. Travel Allowances 

19. Travel Insurance 

20. Vacation Benefits 

21. Voting Time Off 

22. Witness Duty Leave 

D. Some benefit programs require contributions from the employee [example:  COBRA], 
but most are fully paid by the Borough.   

10.02 VACATION BENEFITS     

A. Vacation time off with pay is available to eligible employees to provide opportunities for 
rest, relaxation, and personal pursuits.  Regular full-time employees and regular part-
time employees are eligible to earn and use vacation time as described in this policy.  
The amount of paid vacation time Borough employees receive each year increases with 
the length of their Borough employment as shown in the following schedule. 

  



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 50 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

B. VACATION EARNING SCHEDULE 

YEARS OF ELIGIBLE SERVICE VACATION DAYS  VACATION DAYS EACH YEAR 

(full-time equivalent) SEMIMONTHLY EACH YEAR 

Upon initial eligibility .500 days 12 days 

After 3 years .750 days 18 days 

After 7 years 1.00 days 24 days  

C. The length of eligible service is calculated on the basis of a “benefit year”.  This is the 

12 month period that begins when the employee starts to earn vacation time. 

D. Once employees enter an eligible employment classification, they begin to earn paid 
vacation time according to the schedule.  However, before vacation time can be used, 
a waiting period of ninety (90) calendar days must be completed.  After that time, 
employees can request use of earned vacation time including that accrued during the 
waiting period. 

E. Paid vacation time can be used in minimum increments of one-half (1/2) day.  To take 
vacation, employees shall request advance written approval from their supervisors.  
Requests will be reviewed based on a number of factors, including business needs and 

staffing requirements. 

F. Vacation time off is paid at the employee’s base rate at the time of vacation.  It does 
not include overtime or any special forms of compensation such as incentives, 

commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials. 

G. Employees are encouraged to use available paid vacation time for rest, relaxation, and 
personal pursuits.  If there is available vacation time that is not used by the end of the 

benefit year, employees may accrue it and carry it to the next benefit year.   

H. Upon termination of employment, employees will be paid for unused vacation time that 
has been earned through the last day of work.  At the employee’s option, that unused 

vacation time may be used to earn more credit in the PERS system51. 

10.03 CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE   

A. The Borough provides child care assistance to all eligible employees as a benefit of 
employment.  Eligible employee classifications are regular full-time employees and 
regular part-time employees. 

B. Given below is a brief description of child care assistance that may be provided when 
feasible. For more detailed information, please contact the Mayor, Borough 

Administrator. 

                                                 
51  This option will be available so long as it is acceptable to the PERS system. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 51 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

1. FLEX-TIME SCHEDULING:  Employees may request the opportunity to vary their 
work schedules (within employer-defined limits) to better accommodate child care 
responsibilities. 

2. FLEXIBLE LEAVE:  The Borough recognizes that the fulfillment of child care 
responsibilities can provide a compelling reason for time-off requests.  Where 

feasible, the employee’s needs will be accommodated. 

3. JOB SHARING:  Two part-time employees may split what would ordinarily be a 

single full-time position. 

4. SICK LEAVE BENEFITS:  Employees may use accrued sick leave benefits in the 
event of the illness of the employee’s child. 

10.04 RELOCATION BENEFITS   

A. Those employees eligible for relocation benefits will be determined, in the Borough’s 
sole discretion, by the Mayor or Borough Administrator on a case-by-case basis, taking 
into account the availability of funds to pay the relocation costs and other factors.  When 
the Borough asks employees to relocate to a new area, certain relocation benefits may 
be provided to facilitate the transition.  Relocation may be available to any eligible 
transferred or newly-hired employee who must relocate in order to reside within 50 

miles of the new place of work.   

B. Employees must request relocation assistance for specific items before the date of the 
expenses are incurred.  The Borough will reimburse expenses only if the employee has 
received advance written approval, incurs reasonable expenses, and submits 
satisfactory proof of the expense within thirty (30) calendar days of the date the 
expense was incurred. 

C. For specific information regarding the terms and extent of relocation benefits, please 
contact the Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

10.05 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE   

A. The Borough provides a comprehensive Workers’ Compensation Insurance program at 
no cost to the Borough employee.  This program covers any injury or illness sustained 
during employment that requires medical, surgical or hospital treatment.  Subject to 
applicable legal requirements, Workers’ Compensation Insurance provides benefits after 

a short waiting period or, if the Borough employee is hospitalized, immediately. 

B. Employees who sustain work-related injuries or illnesses shall immediately inform their 
supervisor, in writing, of the injuries or illnesses.  No matter how minor an on-the-job 
injury may appear, it is important that it be reported immediately.  This will enable an 
eligible Borough employee to qualify for coverage quickly. 

C. Neither the Borough nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of Workers’ 
Compensation benefits for injuries that occur during an employee’s voluntary 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 52 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

participation in off-duty recreational, social, or athletic activity, whether or not such 

activity is sponsored by the Borough. 

10.06 BENEFITS CONTINUATION (COBRA)   

A. The federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees 
and their qualified beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health insurance coverage 
under the Borough’s health plan when a “qualifying event” would normally result in the 

loss of eligibility. 

B. Some common qualifying events are resignation, termination of employment, or death 
of an employee; a reduction in an employee’s hours or a leave of absence; an 
employee’s divorce or legal separation; and a dependent child no longer meeting 

eligibility requirements. 

C. Under COBRA, the former Borough employee or beneficiary pays the full cost of 

coverage at the Borough’s group rate, plus an administration fee. 

D. The Borough provides each eligible employee with a written notice describing rights 
granted under COBRA when the employee becomes eligible for coverage under the 
Borough’s health insurance plan.  The notice contains important information about the 

employee’s rights and obligations. 

TRAVEL AND PER DIEM 

11.01 BUSINESS TRAVEL EXPENSES 

A. The Borough will pay for the cost of travel for all elected officials, appointed officials and 
employees (Borough travelers) who must travel on Borough business. 

1. The general rule is, to be eligible for reimbursement, official business travel must 
be approved in advance, in writing, by the Borough Mayor or the Borough 

Administrator. 

2. In cases where neither the Mayor nor the Administrator is available to authorize 
such expenses ahead of time, the person traveling may apply for reimbursement 
after the fact.  However, there is no guarantee that such expenses will be 

reimbursed unless they are approved in advance (i.e., before the fact). 

3. The cost of travel includes the cost of airplane tickets and charters of airplanes or 

vessels. 

a. The cost of airplane tickets should be included as part of the written request 
submitted for advance written approval, as contemplated in A.1. above. 

b. The charter of an airplane or vessel must be approved in writing by the Mayor 
(or, in the Mayor’s absence, by the Borough Administrator), in advance of the 

charter of the airplane or vessel. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 53 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

c. Travel should begin at the day closest to the time of the meeting, conference, 

etc., which the person is attending. 

d. The Borough will not pay for the cost of travel of any elected official, appointed 
official or employee who must travel from outside of the Borough to the 
Borough for meetings, or to return to a work site inside of the Borough, if the 
travel did not begin within the Borough.  Exception:  For those Borough 
employees stationed at work sites outside of the Borough, travel will be paid 
from the work site to the Borough, and back to the work site. 

4. Cash advances to cover reasonable anticipated expenses may be made to Borough 
travelers after travel has been approved.  Borough travelers should submit a 
written request to the Borough Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee at least 
five (5) working days ahead of the anticipated travel date, when travel advances 

are needed. 

B. Officials and employees whose travel plans have been approved should make all travel 

arrangements through the designated travel agency. 

C. The following per diem schedule applies52 for all elected officials, appointed officials and 
employees of the Aleutians East Borough who are required to travel on the Borough’s 
behalf: 

1. $200.00 per day for travel within the Borough; 

2. $200.00 per day for travel outside of the Borough, unless such travel is involves 

staying in Washington, D.C., or vicinity; 

3. $250.00 per day for travel involving a stay in Washington, D.C., or vicinity. 

D. When prior approval has been obtained, the Borough will pay a daily per diem rate53 as 

listed in Paragraph C above, for meals and lodging. 

1. Other expenses directly related to accomplishing business travel objectives will be 
reimbursed by the Borough.  Borough travelers are required to limit expenses to 
reasonable amounts, and reimbursement will be limited to reasonable amounts, 
as determined by the Borough in its sole discretion.  The Borough may make 

                                                 
 
52  In the event that the hotel is charged to a Borough credit card or account, the meal allowance is $65.00 per 

day unless the traveler is in Washington, D.C., where the meal allowance is $75.00 per day.  [This change to 
the Travel & Per Diem Policy which was approved on March 16, 2000, was made by Bob Juettner, per e-mail 

from Roxann dated May 4, 2009.] 
 

53  During periods of prolonged travel, either inside or outside of the Borough, either the Borough Mayor, or, in 

the absence of the Borough Mayor, the Borough Administrator, may find it in the best financial interest of the 
Borough to waive per diem and provide other arrangements such as room and board, actual expenses, etc. 

 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 54 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

alternate arrangements to cover employee living expenses54 when the Borough, in 

its sole discretion, deems such arrangements appropriate. 

2. Car rental costs will be paid only upon prior written approval by the Borough 
Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee, and then only if the Borough official 

determines the rental will be beneficial to the Borough. 

3. Cash advances (“travel advances”) to cover reasonable expenses may be made to 
Borough travelers after travel has been approved.  Borough travelers shall submit 
a written request for a cash advance to the Borough Mayor, Borough Administrator 
or designee when a travel advance is needed. 

E. Any elected official, appointed official or Borough employee who is involved in an 
accident or incident while traveling on official Borough business must promptly report 
the accident or incident, in writing, to appropriate authorities as required by law, and to 
the Borough Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee. 

F. Vehicles owned, leased or rented by the Borough may not be used for personal use 

without prior written approval. 

G. Resident travel.55  There are times when it is in the best interest of the Borough for 
residents to attend meetings that are related to the well being of the Borough and its 
residents.  [Examples:  Board of Fisheries, the North Pacific Fisheries Management 
Council, Pacific Halibut Commission, etc.]  Rules applicable to resident travel include: 

1. The Borough Mayor will determine which meetings require resident attendance 
and which residents will be sent at the Borough’s expense.  The Mayor will make 
every attempt to distribute the opportunity to attend the meetings equitably 
among residents and their communities. 

2. The Borough will pay the cost of travel from the Borough to the meetings and back 
to the Borough.  The Borough will pay per diem at the same rate as for other 

Borough travelers. 

3. In order to maximize resident participation, the Borough will only pay travel costs 

and per diem for one member per household per meeting. 

4. Residents requesting travel and/or per diem to attend a meeting must do so in 
writing prior to the beginning of the meeting. 

5. The Mayor is authorized to require that residents traveling at the Borough’s 
expense must actively participate in the meetings.  This may take the form of daily 
attendance at the meetings, testifying during the course of the meetings and/or 
prohibitions against deal-making at meetings.  All such requirements shall be 

                                                 
54  For example, making lodging payments directly to a hotel, providing living quarters, paying for food and 

preparation, etc. 

 
55  “Resident travel” is travel by a Borough resident who is not an elected official, appointed official or Borough 

employee.  The requirements for resident travel were amended in November, 2004. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 55 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

established in writing, in advance of the travel.  Failure to abide by the Mayor’s 
requirements will result in the forfeiture of future Borough-financed travel and may 
require the resident to repay to the Borough some or all of the funds advanced by 

the Borough. 

6. In order to maximize the participation of residents at these meetings, the Borough 
may agree to cost-share the expenses with other organizations.  [For example, a 
village corporation may pay the cost of travel while the Borough pays the per diem. 
]  The Borough will not pay additional per diem to anyone already receiving per 

diem under a cost-sharing agreement.  

H. Borough travelers shall submit travel expense reports within fifteen (15) days.  Reports 

must be accompanied by acceptable receipts56 for all individual expenses. 

I. Borough travelers should contact the Borough Mayor, Borough Administrator or designee 
for guidance and assistance regarding procedures related to travel arrangements, travel 
advances, expense reports, reimbursement for specific expenses, or any other issues 

pertaining to travel undertaken to accomplish official Borough business.  

J. Abuse of the travel and per diem policies listed in this handbook, including but not limited 
to falsifying expense reports to reflect costs not actually incurred by the Borough 
traveler, may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 

Borough employment. 

  

                                                 
 

56  Generally, receipts will be deemed acceptable for Borough purposes if they would be considered sufficient 
documentation for the IRS or otherwise acceptable for normal expenses of a business or by generally accepted 

accounting principles. 



 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 56 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

FORMS      

REQUEST FOR LEAVE FORM 

 
(submit original to your immediate supervisor for review and signature, then forward copies of the completed 
form including all signatures to the Finance Director and the Borough Administrator within 2 business days) 

 
work date(s): ____________________ . 

 (insert date or dates)  

 
Name of employee requesting leave:      . 
 
Number of hours of requested        . 
     
By signing below, I certify that the contents of this Request for Sick Leave are complete and correct to the best 
of my knowledge and (except in cases authorized as an emergency) this request was submitted before the sick 
leave was taken. 

 
Leave type requested: Sick Leave   Annual Leave  
 

Leave to Vote  Funeral Leave    Leave Without Pay  
 
   FMLA Requested?  Yes   No 
 
 
Request submitted by:          

                          signature of employee requesting leave             date 

 
          
    printed name 
 

 
 Approved      Non-Emergency 

 
 Disapproved      Emergency 

 Reason:     Reason:     
 
             
 
FMLA Information and application provided to employee?  Yes   No 
 
 
 
             

Signature of Supervisor    Date 
 
             

Printed name of supervisor    Title 



 

 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 57 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT  

Basic Leave Entitlement  
FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible employees for the following reasons:  
• For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or child birth;  
• To care for the employee’s child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care;  
• To care for the employee’s spouse, son or daughter, or parent, who has a serious health condition; or  
• For a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee’s job.  

Military Family Leave Entitlements  
Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or call to active duty status in the National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency 
operation may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include attending certain military events, 
arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending post-deployment 
reintegration briefings.  
FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered service member during a single 
12-month period. A covered service member is a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who has a serious 
injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on active duty that may render the service member medically unfit to perform his or her duties for which the service 
member is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; or is in outpatient status; or is on the temporary disability retired list.  

Benefits and Protections  
During FMLA leave, the employer must maintain the employee’s health coverage under any “group health plan” on the same terms as if the employee had continued 
to work. Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees must be restored to their original or equivalent positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment 
terms.  
Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the start of an employee’s leave.  

Eligibility Requirements  
Employees are eligible if they have worked for a covered employer for at least one year, for 1,250 hours over the previous 12 months, and if at least 50 employees 
are employed by the employer within 75 miles.  

Definition of Serious Health Condition  
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or 
continuing treatment by a health care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee’s job, or prevents 
the qualified family member from participating in school or other daily activities.  
Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of incapacity of more than 3 consecutive calendar days combined with 
at least two visits to a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic 
condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment.  

Use of Leave  
An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. 
Employees must make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the employer’s operations. Leave due to 
qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an intermittent basis.  

Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave  
Employees may choose or employers may require use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. In order to use paid leave for FMLA leave, employees must 
comply with the employer’s normal paid leave policies.  

Employee Responsibilities  
Employees must provide 30 days advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable. When 30 days notice is not possible, the employee 
must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with an employer’s normal call-in procedures.  
Employees must provide sufficient information for the employer to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration 
of the leave. Sufficient information may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions, the family member is unable to perform daily activities, the 
need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must 
inform the employer if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. Employees also may be required to provide a 
certification and periodic recertification supporting the need for leave.  

Employer Responsibilities  
Covered employers must inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA. If they are, the notice must specify any additional information 
required as well as the employees’ rights and responsibilities. If they are not eligible, the employer must provide a reason for the ineligibility.  
Covered employers must inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and the amount of leave counted against the employee’s leave entitlement. 
If the employer determines that the leave is not FMLA-protected, the employer must notify the employee.  

Unlawful Acts by Employers  
FMLA makes it unlawful for any employer to:  
• Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under FMLA;  
• Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by FMLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA.  

Enforcement  
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private lawsuit against an employer.  
FMLA does not affect any Federal or State law prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any State or local law or collective bargaining agreement which provides 
greater family or medical leave rights.  

FMLA section 109 (29 U.S.C. § 2619) requires FMLA covered employers to post the text of this notice. Regulations 29 C.F.R. § 825.300(a) may 
require additional disclosures. 

 For additional information: 1-866-4US-WAGE (1-866-487-9243) TTY: 1-877-889-5627   WWW.WAGEHOUR.DOL.GOV       WHD Publication 1420 Revised 01/09 

http://www.wagehour.dol.gov/


 

 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 58 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

CRIMINAL HISTORY, DRIVING, BACKGROUND, AND CREDIT CHECK AUTHORIZATION FORM 
PLEASE READ COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS, AND THEN SIGN  

CONVICTION REPORTING  

Please check all statements that apply:  

 I have never been convicted of a crime in this or any other state.* 

   I do not have a record of founded child or dependent adult abuse in this or any other state*  

 I have been convicted of, or found guilty of:           Explain the circumstances, sentence, etc.* 

* Please include deferred judgments.  

While a conviction in itself may not prohibit employment, all factors surrounding the conviction will be considered in respect to the job duties. I understand that 
depending upon the nature of the conviction I may be denied employment. If I become an employee, I also agree to self report any criminal convictions which occur 
after I become an employee (if offered employment).  I understand that by signing below, I am giving permission for the Aleutians East Borough (AEB) 
to check the child and/or adult abuse registries and the Federal and State agencies for criminal records.  The post-employment discovery of 
conviction information not provided here will subject me to the AEB’s disciplinary policy. This will likely result in termination of my employment.  

 

SAFE DRIVING STATEMENT 

Please check read the complete statement and the appropriate box/s below:  

I currently have a valid driver’s license.    Driver’s license #:     State:    

*I do not currently have a valid driver’s license.    

   I understand that this may prevent Aleutians East Borough from offering me employment, or it may restrict the type of position and/or 
location offered to me.  

   I also understand that before I may be allowed to drive on agency business, a Motor Vehicle Records check will be conducted.  

 

CREDIT HISTORY 

 I authorize the investigation of my credit information. 

Release of my credit information is authorized whether such information is of record or not and is for the purpose of determining my suitability 
for employment with the Aleutians East Borough. 

 

CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT  

I authorize investigation of all statements contained in this application supplement.  I authorize my former employers, educational institutions, 
consumer reporting agencies, my personal references (listed or unlisted), and Federal and State agencies to give any information they 
may have regarding my employment history, personal background, credit history, driving record and criminal history and hereby release 
them and their organizations from all liability for any damage whatsoever for issuing same to the Aleutians East Borough. 

If employed by Aleutians East Borough:   I will faithfully, diligently, and to the best of my ability perform duties of employment, and accept 
and obey all rules, regulations, code, provisions, policies and procedures, and policies of employment issued, or to be issued by the 
AEB. I understand that misrepresentation or omission of facts in this supplement or my application for employment is 
cause for dismissal.  

Further, I understand and agree that my employment is “at will” and is therefore for no definite period and may, regardless of the date of 

payment of my wages and salary, be terminated at any time, for any reason, or no reason, and without any previous notice.  

I have read the foregoing and hereby affix my signature as verification of all statements and authorizations herein. 

  
 

    

Signature    Date 
 
 

    

Printed Name  Birth Date  Social Security Number 
 
We consider applicants for all positions without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital or veteran status, or the 
presence of a non-job-related medical condition or disability.   In accordance with Alaska State Law, the Aleutians East Borough prohibits 
smoking except in authorized outdoor areas. 



 

 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 59 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH TRAVEL REQUEST & REPORT FORM



 

 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 60 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

AEB ORGANIZATIONAL CHART – March 2009 

 
 



 

 
Approved May 28, 2009 Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures Page 61 of 61  

 Employee Handbook 

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM 

 
 
 

The Employee Handbook describes important information about the Aleutians East 
Borough, and I understand I should consult with the Mayor, Borough Administrator or 
designee regarding any questions not answered in the handbook. 
 
Since the information, policies and benefits described here are necessarily subject to 
change, I acknowledge that revisions to the handbook may occur.  All such changes will 
be communicated through official notices, and I understand that revised information may 
supersede, modify, or eliminate existing policies.  Only the Assembly of the Aleutians East 
Borough has authority to adopt any revisions or additions to the policies in this handbook. 
 
As an employee of the Aleutians East Borough I will faithfully, diligently, and to the best 
of my ability perform duties of employment, and accept and obey all rules, regulations, 
code, provisions, policies and procedures, and policies of employment issued, or to be 
issued by the AEB.  
 
I have entered into my employment relationship with the Aleutians East Borough 
voluntarily and acknowledge that my employment is for no definite period and may, 
regardless of the date of payment of my wages and salary, be terminated by the Aleutians 
East Borough at any time, for any reason, or no reason, and without any previous notice.  
I also understand that I may terminate my voluntary employment relationship with the 
Aleutians East Borough for any reason, or no reason, with two weeks written notice. 
 
Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is not a contract of employment.  I have 
received the handbook, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read, understand 
and comply with the policies contained in this handbook and any revisions or additions 
made to it. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Employee’s Signature  Employee’s Title 

 
 
 

  

Employee’s Printed Name  Date 

 



 

    
 

ANCHORAGE OFFICE   3380 C Street, Ste 205     Anchorage, AK  99503-3952     (907)274-7555     Fax: (907)276-7569   
KING COVE OFFICE     P.O. Box 49     King Cove, AK 99612     (907)497-2588     Fax:  (907)497-2386   

SAND POINT OFFICE     P.O. Box 349     Sand Point, AK 99661    (907)383-2699     Fax:  (907)383-3496   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Assembly and Mayor 
From: Tina Anderson, Clerk 
Date:  January 14, 2016 
Re: FY16 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program for FMA2 and FMA3. 
 
Resolution 16-13, a resolution adopting an alternative method for the Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Allocation for FMA 2.  This is the same distribution scheme that was 
agreed upon since the inception of the program.  All of the municipalities within FMA 2 
(west of Unimak) receive an equal share of 60% of the program receipts.  The eligible 
cities will share the remaining 40% of the funding allocation on a per capita basis. The 
FY16 program allocation to AEB is $96,521.87.   
 
Resolution 16-14, a resolution adopting an alternative method for the Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Allocation for FMA 3.  This also is the same distribution scheme that was 
agreed upon since the inception of the program.  All the municipalities within FMA 3 
(east of Unimak), will share equally 40%. The remaining 60% will be divided among the 
eligible cities based on a per capita basis. The FY15 program allocation to AEB is 
$7,693.14. 









 
 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 16-13 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY ADOPTING AN 

ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY 16 SHARED FISHERIES 

BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS ALLOCATION METHOD 

FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF 

FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY IN THE ALEUTIAN ISLANDS FISHERIES 

MANAGEMENT AREA 2.  

 
 WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY16 
Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development that the municipality 
suffered significant effects during calendar year 2014 from fisheries business activities; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, 3AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to 
eligible municipalities located within fisheries management areas specified by the 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development; and  
 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods 
which may be used within fisheries management areas if all eligible municipalities within 
the area agree to use the method, and the method incorporates some measure of the 
relative significant effect of fisheries business activity on the respective municipalities in 
the area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough proposes to use an alternative method for 
allocation of FY16 funding available within the Aleutian Islands Fisheries Management 
Area in agreement with all other municipalities in this area participating in the FY16 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THAT: 
SECTION 1.  The Aleutians East Borough by this resolution certifies that the following 
alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects during 
2014 of fisheries business activity in the Aleutian Island Region Fisheries Management 
Area 2. 
 



AEB Resolution 16-13 

ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD: 
1. Each municipality (including the Aleutians East Borough) will split 60 percent 

of the total funding allocation for the fisheries management area; 
2. Each city (excluding the Aleutians East Borough) will split 40 percent of the 

funding allocation on a per capita basis.  
 
Approved this   day of January, 2016. 
 
             
       Mayor 
         
 
ATTEST:        
       Clerk 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 16-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY ADOPTING AN 

ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY 16 SHARED FISHERIES 

BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS ALLOCATION METHOD 

FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF 

FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY IN THE ALASKA PENINSULA FISHERIES 

MANAGEMENT AREA 3.  

 
WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY16 
Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development that the municipality 
suffered significant effects during calendar year 2014 from fisheries business activities; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, 3AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to 
eligible municipalities located within fisheries management areas specified by the 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development; and  
 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods 
which may be used within fisheries management areas if all eligible municipalities within 
the area agree to use the method, and the method incorporates some measure of the 
relative significant effect of fisheries business activity on the respective municipalities in 
the area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough proposes to use an alternative method for 
allocation of FY16 funding available within the Aleutian Islands Fisheries Management 
Area in agreement with all other municipalities in this area participating in the FY15 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THAT: 
SECTION 1.  The Aleutians East Borough by this resolution certifies that the following 
alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects during 
2014 of fisheries business activity in the Alaska Peninsula Fisheries Management Area 3. 
 

 ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD:  It is proposed that 40% of the 
FY15 funding available for FMA3 be distributed equally among the eligible 
municipalities located within FMA3, and that the remaining 60% of the funding be 
divided among the same eligible communities based upon revenue sharing 



AEB Resolution 16-14 

population estimated as determined for 2014 by DCCED, with exception of 
mutually agreed upon population counts for the Aleutians East Borough and Lake 
and Peninsula Borough.   
 

 
Approved this   day of January, 2015. 
 
 
 
             
       Mayor 
         
 
ATTEST:        
       Clerk 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
None



New Business 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Aleutians East Borough School District 
PO BOX 429, SAND POINT, AK 99661 

PHONE 907.383.5222 • FAX 907.383.3496 
SERVING THE CHILDREN IN THE ALASKAN COMMUNITIES OF: 

AKUTAN, FALSE PASS, KING COVE, AND SAND POINT 
www.aebsd.org 

 

 
 
January 6, 2016 
 
 
 
 
RE: Request the return of prior year contribution funds 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The Aleutians East Borough School District formally requests a substantial return of the residual 
FY2015 contribution funds previously remitted to the Aleutians East Borough. 
 
The amount requested is $353,700. 
 
Regards, 
 

 
David Nielsen 
AEBSD Business Manager 



REPORTS AND UPDATES 





1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Mack and AEB Assembly 
 
From:  Anne Bailey, Assistant Borough Administrator 
 
Subject: Assembly Report  
 
Date:  January 7, 2016 
 
 
 
Akutan Helicopter Operations 
 

 Helicopter Changes: Effective January 20, 2016, all passengers will be required to have a 
ticket to board the helicopter. If they do not have a ticket than they do not travel. The 
Akutan Airport Operations Support Services Assistant will assist in this process. A letter 
and flyer are being distributed to all PO Box holders in Akutan notifying them of this 
change.  
 

 Akutan Airport Operations Support Services Assistant – Rick and I conducted interviews 
for this position on December 29 and 30, 2015. Josy Borenin-Shangin has accepted the 
position and will begin working on Monday, January 11, 2016.  
 

 Helipad Hangar- The City of Akutan and State of Alaska have agreed to pay for costs 
related to the hangar design and permitting out of the Co-Sponsorship Agreement funds.   
Rick and I will be working with DOWL to develop a design and cost estimate for a 
hangar on the helipad in Akutan.  

 
 
Cold Bay Clinic 
Began researching the possibility of remodeling the Cold Bay School into a clinic. On December 
1 and 2, 2015, ANTHC staff conducted an assessment of the Cold Bay School to see if it can be 
renovated into a clinic. We are in the process of deciding if this facility will work well as a 
clinic.  
 
King Cove School Rehabilitation Project 
DOWL, UNIT Company and the Borough discussed ways to reduce the cost of this project. 
After discussions we were able to reduce the project cost by $140,000. We have completed the 
contract and notice to proceed for this project.  



2 | P a g e  
 

 
Contract Information  
A list of active contracts that I am involved in are listed below:  

  
 URS     

Akutan Harbor Floats 
 Harvey Consulting  

Planning Commission Contract Labor     $20,000 
 HDR, Alaska  

Nelson Lagoon Erosion Engineering and Support Services   $62,000 
 
Other Items 

 I worked on an employee handbook update to include marijuana in our drug policies; I 
revised the Maintenance Director position job description, drafted the interview questions 
and conducted interviews for this position, I issued a Notice of Termination for a Multi-
Sector General Permit in Akutan (the City of Akutan will be taking this over since they 
own the fill material at the harbor), I continuously work on helicopter operations and 
have completed many other items.  

 I am scheduled to travel to Akutan on January 19-21, 2016 to train our new employee.  
 I will also be travelling to Juneau on February 1-3, 2016.  
 I am continuously conducting other day to day operations. 

 
If you have any questions, comments or concerns please contact me at (907) 274-7580 or 
abailey@aeboro.org. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

mailto:abailey@aeboro.org


www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   1/7/16  page 1         

To:  The Honorable Mayor Mack, Aleutians East Borough Assembly      
From:  Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Director  
Subj:  Report to the Assembly  
Date:  January 7, 2016 
 
Winter Fisheries 

Pacific cod – The GOA federal/parallel Pacific cod A season for non-trawl (jig, pot, hook & line) gear 
opened January 1, 2016. Directed fishing for trawl gear opens January 20.  For 2016 the WGOA A season 
allocation for Jig gear (3.5%) is 595 metric tons (mt), compared to 569 mt in 2015.  The federal WGOA A season 
allocation for Pot CV/CP is 5,417 mt compared to 5,176 mt in 2015 and the allocation for Trawl CV is 7,579 mt 
compared to 7,242 mt in 2015.  In 2015, the WGOA federal Pacific cod A season for pot gear closed February 
12, and the trawl season closed March 11.   

PPSF posted a price for Pacific cod as of January 1 2016:  $ .27 per lb. for 23 inches and up, paying less 
for smaller fish and number 2 quality fish.    

The total GHL for the state-waters South Alaska Peninsula cod season is 26,788,149 lbs. The state pot 
gear cod season opens March 7, or seven days after the federal/parallel Pacific cod pot gear sector A-season 
closes, whichever is later.  Other local state-waters winter fisheries include jig for black rockfish and a small 
tanner crab opening in Makushin and Skan bays on Unalaska Island.    

Pollock -The 2016 annual TACs for GOA areas: for Area 610 - 56,494 mt, Area 620 - 124,927 mt, and 
Area 630 - 57,183 mt, an increase in all areas from the 2015 pollock TACs  Directed fishing for pollock using 
trawl gear opens January 20, 2016. The 2016 pollock A season allocations are: Area 610 - 3,827 mt, Area 620 - 
43,374 mt and Area 630 - 12,456 mt.   
 We held our annual AEB Winter Fisheries Enforcement teleconference for fishermen on December 29th, 
2015. For more information on our winter fisheries see the meeting summary by Laura Tanis in the recent Fish 
News, or listen to an archived recording of the radio broadcast.  Special thanks to KSDP for the radio/internet 
broadcast of this informational meeting. 
 
Board of Fisheries 
 The Board of Fisheries meeting to discuss Alaska Peninsula & Chignik salmon issues will run February 
23rd through March 1st at the Anchorage Sheraton.  We would like to determine soon which local fishermen and/or 
Assembly members will be available to attend and/or testify at this upcoming meeting. All of our local Fish & 
Game Advisory Committees, False Pass, Nelson Lagoon, Sand Point & King Cove have had, or are planning to 
have local AC meetings in advance of the Board meeting, however it is unclear how the Governor’s recent State 
travel restriction order will impact Board sponsored travel for AC representatives to attend the Board meeting. 
Throughout the February Board meeting, the AEB will host a separate meeting room for AEB fishermen near the 
Board meeting on the 2nd floor of the Sheraton hotel complete with a computer, printer, copier and coffee. 
 Three proposals before the Board that would reduce Area M by moving the Area T boundary line, 
Proposals 22, 23 & 24, were heard at the December Bristol Bay meeting and will be discussed at the February 
meeting.  I testified against these proposals at the Bristol Bay meeting, as they would degrade the value of all 
Area M drift permits and potentially hurt the sustainability of the PPSF plant at Port Moller.   
 We are preparing our comments in advance of the on-time comment deadline for the meeting, February 
8th and we may submit RCs (record copies) during the meeting. The proposals for the Alaska Peninsula/Aleutian 
Islands/Chignik Finfish meeting can be found here. 
 
North Pacific Fishery Management Council 

For a review of the actions at the December NPFMC meeting, see the December Council newsletter, which 
covers announcements of new appointments to the Advisory Panel including APICDA’s Angel Drobnika, and 
the Council plans for outreach meetings in Sand Point. I will travel to Sand Point for the January 19 outreach 
meeting with Chairman Dan Hull, Council member Nicole Kimball, staff Sam Cunningham and fishermen. 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/applications/dcfnewsrelease/636421847.pdf
http://www.aleutianseast.org/vertical/sites/%7BEBDABE05-9D39-4ED4-98D4-908383A7714A%7D/uploads/Fish_News__-_Dec._30_2015.pdf
http://www.aleutianseast.org/vertical/sites/%7BEBDABE05-9D39-4ED4-98D4-908383A7714A%7D/uploads/Fish_News__-_Dec._30_2015.pdf
http://apradio.org/25601-2/
http://gov.alaska.gov/Walker/press-room/full-press-release.html?pr=7355
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2015-2016/proposals/aream_entire%2022-201.pdf
http://www.npfmc.org/wp-content/PDFdocuments/newsletters/news1215.pdf
http://www.aebfish.org/outreach011916poster.pdf
http://www.aebfish.org/outreach011916poster.pdf


www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   1/7/16  page 2         

 The NPFMC agenda for the February 1-9 meeting in Portland is now available online, and includes C2, 
the GOA Trawl Bycatch Management discussion paper, C9, a review of alternatives for Observer Tendering, C8, 
the now annual GOA tendering report and C7, a review of the Electronic Monitoring analysis methods and 
alternatives. The Crab Rationalization 10 year review has been moved again, now to the June meeting in Kodiak. 
 I have recently corresponded with Karen Montoya at Aleutia about the AEB grant from NFWF to develop 
a Community Fishing Association, related to the GOA Trawl Bycatch Management program.  After several 
discussions by phone and email, I drafted the following language for a possible AEB resolution and shared with 
Mayor Mack, Ms. Montoya and eventually the Aleutia Board. Included here for Assembly consideration: 

Whereas, the Aleutians East Borough (AEB) stated the AEB goals for fishery management programs in 
the previous AEB Resolution 13-16, and  
Whereas, the North Pacific Fishery Management Council (NPFMC) is considering a community fishing 
association (CFA) as part of a Gulf of Alaska Trawl Bycatch Management program (GOA TBM), and 
Whereas, the AEB was awarded a National Fish & Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) grant to help develop 
the CFA for the GOA TBM, and  
Whereas, a recent report to the AEB (Reedy, 2015, http://aebfish.org/wgoatbmpsia.pdf)  indicates 
significant differences between the Western GOA (WGOA) Sand Point & King Cove trawl fleet and the 
Kodiak fleet, and  
Whereas, Aleutia has been a good steward of fishery resources and has benefitted the fishermen and 
communities of the AEB in the organization's role as Community Quota Entity (CQE) & as Eligible Crab 
Community Organization (ECCO) for AEB communities. 
Now therefore be it resolved, the AEB reaffirms the goals in AEB Resolution 13-16 and supports the 
NPFMC only develop a final GOA TBM program that helps control bycatch, benefits fishermen & keeps 
our fleet and communities whole, and  
Be it further resolved, that if the NPFMC chooses an alternative in GOA TBM including a CFA, the AEB 
supports a separate WGOA CFA for the communities and trawl fleet of Sand Point & King Cove, and  
Be it further resolved, the AEB supports Aleutia as the appropriate agency to act as the WGOA CFA for 
the local trawl fleet in the AEB, if the NPFMC includes an alternative for a CFA. 
 

I am happy to answer any questions the Assembly may have about the NFWF grant and/or process. 
 
Meeting attendance 
Meetings recently attended: 

• Nov30/Dec1  Board of Fish Pacific Cod meeting     Anchorage Egan Center 
• Dec 2   Board of Fish Bristol Bay finfish    Anchorage Egan Center 
• Dec 7-15  NPFMC/associated meetings     Anchorage Hilton 
• Dec 29  AEB fishermen’s winter enforcement meeting  Teleconference  
• Jan 5  Anchorage Fish & Game Advisory Committee Anchorage 

 
Plan to attend: 

• Jan 12-13 Fisheries Access for Alaska - Sea Grant workshop  Anchorage LIO  
• Jan 15  Nelson Lagoon Fish & Game Advisory Committee  teleconference 
• Jan 18  Sand Point Fish & Game Advisory Committee 6PM Sand Point City Hall 
• Jan 19  NPFMC outreach meeting in Sand Point  AEB Office in Sand Point 
• Jan 28  Kodiak Rural Leadership Forum   Kodiak 
• Jan 25-29 Alaska Marine Science Symposium    Anchorage Hotel Captain Cook 
• Feb 1-9 NPFMC meetings     Portland 

 
Happy New Year!  Please call if you have any questions or concerns. 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.npfmc.org/
http://www.aleutianseast.org/vertical/sites/%7BEBDABE05-9D39-4ED4-98D4-908383A7714A%7D/uploads/RES_13-16.pdf
http://aebfish.org/wgoatbmpsia.pdf


 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Mack and Aleutians East Borough Assembly 

From:  Laura Tanis, AEB Communications Director 

Through:  Rick Gifford, AEB Administrator 

Subject: Communications Director’s Report to the Assembly 

Date:  Jan. 8, 2015 

 
Following the last Assembly meeting, I’ve been busy working on the monthly In the Loop 
newsletter for December, three Fish News editions and facilitated the publication of a 
commentary in the Alaska Dispatch about King Cove medevacs and the need for a road. In 
addition, I’ve also secured meeting space at the Sheraton for AEB Fishermen Feb. 23rd – March 1, 
2016 during the Alaska Board of Fisheries. Below are details from projects I’ve been engaged in:  
 
Headlines from In the Loop – (Dec. 18, 2015) 
 

 PenAir’s Saab 2000: Bigger, Better & Faster 
 Sand Point Exploring Airport Certification 
 Making Strong Connections to Bring Faster 

Internet Service to the Aleutians, South Alaska 
Peninsula 

 PND Receives Bid to Rehabilitate Sand Point’s 
Dock 

 The State of Alaska’s MAKE Partnership 
 Christmas Comes Early in King Cove – Santa 

Parade Scheduled for Saturday 
 
Fish News – (Dec. 18th) 
 

 NPFMC Dec. 2015 Meeting Recap 
 Crab 

Gulf of Alaska Trawl Bycatch Management 
 Staff Tasking 
 Council Appointments and Advisory Panel 
 Upcoming Meetings 

 
 

Fish News – (Dec. 28, 2015) 
 

 Announcement: AEB Fishermen’s Meeting – Winter Fisheries Enforcement Meeting 
 



Fish News – (Dec. 30th) 
 

 Highlights from AEB Fishermen’s 
Winter Fisheries Enforcement 
Teleconference 
Longliners Not Allowed to Set Gear for 
Cod Before Midnight Dec. 31, 2015 

 Clarification on When Fishing Trips End 
Under Observer Program 

 Bycatch on State Decreasing to 5% in 
2016 

 Verify VMS Units are Working Properly 
 New Observer Coverage Fine 
 Requirements for Fishing in Parallel P. 

Cod Fishery 
 Pollock TAC in Western Gulf 
 Observer Program and Selection Rate 
 USCG Moving from 2-year to 5-year 

Certification 
 

 
Miscellaneous projects include:  
 

 Updates to the Borough website, included 
providing informational links to the state’s 
Department of Commerce, Community E Economic Development – Community of 
Regional Affairs for those AEB communities that do not have their own websites.  

 Added a job description the Borough is promoting via the website and on AEB’s 
Facebook page for the position of the AEB Maintenance Director. 

 Posted stories and information of interest to AEB’s and King Cove’s Facebook pages and 
Twitter.  

 Corresponded with EAT on a frequent basis, updated the number of medevacs in King 
Cove and provided the information to Sen. Murkowski’s office. 

 
Upcoming projects include:  
 

 January edition of In the Loop – writing stories, layout/design & distribution. 
 Fish News  
 Wrapping up details for meeting space/supplies needed at Sheraton during Board of Fish 

meeting – Feb. 23rd – March 1st. 
 
As always, I’m happy to help get the word out about an event or issue in your community. Please 
call or email me any time with information. ltanis@aeboro.org.  

mailto:ltanis@aeboro.org


Assembly Comments 



Public Comments 



Date & Location of Next 
Meeting 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Adjournment 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text


	Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting
	ASSEMBLY WORKSHOP
	Discussion: City of False Pass funding request for a hydro assessment of Unga Man and Waterfall Creek.
	Invoice


	Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
	Adoption of Agenda  
	January 14, 2016 Agenda

	Community Roll Call & Public Comment on Agenda Items
	Minutes 
	December 10, 2015 Assembly Minutes

	Financial Report
	December Financial Report. 

	Investment Report 
	Consent Agenda
	Agenda Statement-Employee Handbook Revisions to include marijuana.
	Resolution16-12, amending the AEB Policies and Procedures Employee Handbook.
	Employee Handbook.


	Memo-FY16 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program for FMA2 and FMA3.
	Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program.
	FMA 2: Aleutian Island Area
	FMA 3: Alaska Peninsula Area.

	Resolution 16-13, adopting an alternative allocation method for the FY16 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program for FMA2.
	Resolution 16-14, adopting an alternative allocation method for the FY16 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program for FMA3.


	Old Business None
	New Business 
	AEBSD funding rollover request of $353,700.

	Reports and Updates
	Administrator's Report 
	Assistant Administrator  Report.
	Resource Director Report
	Communications Director Report

	Assembly Comments
	Public Comments
	Next Meeting Date & Place 
	Adjournment



